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Corporate Information
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors as now constituted is listed below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Jia Jun (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Yung Ka Lai

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Hon Kit
Dr. Liu Yongping
Mr. Ho Man

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wang Jia Jun
Mr. Tam Sze Kin

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Tam Sze Kin

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)
Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

Mr. Wang Jia Jun
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Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Wanjia
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the audited financial results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 March 2021.

In 2020, COVID-19 pandemic swept the world, resulting in a
sharp decline in international trade, shutting down of enterprises
and partial disruption of supply chains in the pharmaceutical and
healthcare industry, and bringing unprecedented challenges to the
global economy. Facing such severe difficulties, the Group made
various decisive adjustments during the year to reduce operating
costs and strive for market share gain. Meanwhile, the Group
strengthened the business in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") market and enhanced the management of cash flows, and
achieved a relatively healthy operating results for the year despite

the aforesaid difficult market conditions.

However, given the inherent unpredictable nature and
development of the COVID-19, especially the outbreak of new
variant that has spread in India and around the world, the Group’s
business might be affected and we will closely monitor the overall

situation and development of events in the regard.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR
The Group continued to focus on pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business, and provides hemodialysis treatment and

consultancy service business in the PRC.

All the Group’s business in the PRC have basically resumed normal
operation in April 2020, total revenue of the Group for the year
was approximately HK$114.086 million, representing an increase
of approximately HK$17.109 million as compared to 2020. The
gross profit was approximately HK$41.336 million, representing
an increase of approximately HK$15.984 million as compared
to 2020. The loss for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company was approximately HK$4.536 million due to the increase
in selling and distribution expenses.
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Management’s Statement
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Total revenue generated from pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business for the year ended 31 March 2021 was
approximately HK$58.771 million, representing a decrease of

approximately 15.46% as compared to 2020.

Total revenue contributed by the hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy service business for the year ended 31 March 2021
was approximately HK$55.315 million, representing a significant

increase of 101.48% as compared to 2020.

OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group will centralise its resources in developing the
hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service business. The
Group will look to further develop its hemodialysis treatment
and consultancy service business through organic growth and

acquisitions.

Looking forward, the Group will focus on developing such
segment through establishment of new self-operated hemodialysis
treatment centres and provide hemodialysis consultancy service
to hospitals in the PRC so as to expand its operating scale and
further penetrate in the market. For this purpose, a business
development team has been set up and has performed initial
feasibility studies on the market potential in various cities or

regions in the PRC.

The Group believes that the demand for hemodialysis treatment
services in the PRC market is still far from being met and has
great potential for development. Based on the Group’s experience
and strength in the medical field, the further exploration and
expansion from our existing businesses to the continuously rising
hemodialysis sector will become the driving force for building our
further influence in the market and create better return to the

shareholders.

The Group will continue to pay attention to different investment
opportunities, identify appropriate businesses and projects for

shareholders, and increase shareholders returns.
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APPRECIATION g

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere FAERRESTTHEBEABRKETIALTE
gratitude to the management team and staff for their tireless EREERELZABE N RS -
dedication that helps fuel the Group's healthy development. In tEh  KATHE2ERR - EBRBHEEAETRZ
addition, | would also like to thank all our shareholders, business BFEXFRRARHSH R_E-—F - xQ8H
partners and customers for their continuous support. In 2021, the BEBZNTW ARREIZERAGER R
Company will continue to work tirelessly to create long-term value

returns for the shareholders.

Wang Jia Jun TR &
Chief Executive Officer Wang Jia Jun
Hong Kong, 28 June 2021 58 _FE—FXAZ+N\H
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of the results of the Group for the financial year ended
31 March 2021 is as follows:

o Total revenue was approximately HK$114.086 million (2020:
approximately HK$96.977 million), representing an increase
of approximately 17.64% over 2020.

o Gross profit was approximately HK$41.336 million (2020:
approximately HK$25.352 million), representing an increase
of approximately 63.05% over 2020.

o The loss from operations was approximately HK$2.089
million (2020: approximately HK$9.470 million).

o Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK$4.536 million (2020: approximately
HK$20.774 million).

o The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$25.099 million as at 31 March
2021(2020: approximately HK$24.801 million).

o The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holdings company and the Group
is engaged in the business on pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business, and hemodialysis treatment and consultancy
service business in the PRC.

8 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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During the early 2020, at the height of the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic in the PRC, the Group followed the government’s
regulations by allowing our staff work from home in our
pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business. Fortunately,
our pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business remained
relatively stable credited to our automated drugs supply ERP
system and operational efficiency. Our hemodialysis treatment
centres continued in operation to serve the patients in need to all
of the care for treatment even during the peak of the pandemic
in the PRC in the early 2020. All the Group’s business in the PRC
have basically resumed normal operation in April 2020. Benefiting
from the increase in the number of patients requiring for our
hemodialysis treatment services, revenue from this business
segment has been doubled in 2021.

However, given the inherent unpredictable nature and
development of the COVID-19, especially the outbreak of new
variant that has spread in India and around the world, the Group’s
business might be affected and we will closely monitor the overall
situation and development of events in the regard.

Segment information

During the year, the revenue of the Group was principally
generated from: (1) pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution
business and (2) hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service
business in the PRC. Financial information in respect of these
operations is presented in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business
The Group has a large and broad customer base through
our distribution network in Fujian Province in the PRC. The
Group distributes pharmaceutical products to our customers
located principally in the Fujian Province. Our customers
can be categorized into three types namely hospitals and
healthcare institutions and end customers such as companies
operating pharmaceutical retail chain stores, independent
pharmacies, and outpatient departments of community
hospitals, healthcare service stations and clinics.

In the early part of 2019, the medical reform policy further
controlled the pharmaceutical costs in public hospitals
in Fujian Province which reduced the overall size of the
pharmaceutical distribution business in public hospitals. In
addition, the distribution policy broke the original rules that
essential medicines in public hospitals in Fujian Province were
only distributed by 10 wholesale companies, thereby causing
material adverse impact in the operation and its overall
performance of the Group in pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business. As a result, revenue from this segment
was approximately HK$58.771 million (2020: approximately
HK$69.523 million), representing an approximately
15.47% decrease. Gain from this business segment was
approximately HK$0.156 million (2020: approximately
HK$0.500 million) due to increase in selling and distribution
expenses.

Hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service
business

In respect of the hemodialysis treatment business, the Group
currently operates several jointly-operated hemodialysis
treatment centres under co-operations contracts and self-
operated hemodialysis treatment centres spread across the
Guangdong, Shangdong and Fujian Provinces, PRC. In
addition, the Group signed a 10 years service contract with
Zhuhai Jiulong Hospital Company Limited* (38 EEERA
BRA &) in March 2020 for providing hemodialysis treatment
and consultancy service business to the hospital. During the
year ended 31 March 2021, the revenue from this segment
was approximately HK$55.315 million (2020: approximately
HK$27.454 million), representing an significant increase of
approximately 101.48%. Gain from this business segment
was approximately HK$7.947 million (2020: Loss
approximately HK$0.994 million) attributable to operational
efficiency and increase in patients treatment.

English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group's revenue from the
operating segment was improved. For the year ended 31 March
2021, revenue was approximately HK$114.086 million (2020:
approximately HK$96.977 million), accounting for an increase
of approximately 17.64% as compared to 2020. The gross profit
margin was approximately 36.23%, while it was approximately
26.14% in 2020. The improvement of gross profit margin was
attributable to the increased revenue from the hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy service business which provided
higher gross profit margin than pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business.

Other revenue

Other revenue, primarily including, COVID-19 government
subsidies, and bank interest income amounted to approximately
HK$0.597 million (2020: approximately HK$0.158 million) for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

Selling and distribution expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2021, selling and distribution
expenses amounted to approximately HK$24.987 million (2020:
approximately HK$17.139 million), representing an increase of
approximately 45.79% as compared to 2020. The increase in
the selling and distribution expenses was due to the increase
of employee benefits and expenses of employees engage in the
hemodialysis treatment and consultancy segment, and promotion
and marketing expenses targeting to promote brand awareness of
the Group's business.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 March 2021
amounted to approximately HK$16.524 million (2020:
approximately HK$14.443 million), representing an increase of
approximately 14.41% as compared to 2020, which was due to
share-based payment expense during the year.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 March 2021,
Group were approximately HK$1.338 million (2020: approximately
HK$11.089 million), representing a significant decrease of
approximately 87.93% as compared to 2020. As the other
borrowing of HK$60 million was fully settled on 25 February
2020, the finance cost was significantly reduced.

the finance costs of the

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Impairment losses recognised in goodwill, property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
In 2021,

assessment of goodwill, property, plant and equipment and right-

the management has performed an impairment

of use assets of the Group. There was no impairment losses of
goodwill, property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.
The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is determined
based on a discounted pre-tax cash flow projections, prepared in
accordance with the financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. For further details, please refer to
Note 18 to Note 20 in the notes to the consolidated financial

statements section.

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company

The Group had recorded loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$4.536 million for the year
ended 31 March 2021 (2020: approximately HK$20.774 million).

The decrease in loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company was mainly attributable to the increase in revenue
and gross profit margin from the hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy service business, and reduction in finance cost for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Overall financial position

The Group had total cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$25.099 million as at 31 March 2021 (2020: approximately
HK$24.801 million). The Group recorded total current assets of
approximately HK$66.512 million as at 31 March 2021 (2020:
approximately HK$59.130 million) and total current liabilities of
approximately HK$32.916 million as at 31 March 2021 (2020:
approximately HK$27.474 million). The current ratio of the
Group, calculated by dividing the current assets by the current
liabilities, was approximately 2.02 as at 31 March 2021 (2020:
approximately 2.15).
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Gearing ratio
As at 31 March 2021,

calculated based on outstanding debts (comprising amount due

the Group's gearing ratio which was

to a connected person, amount due to directors, amount due to
a shareholder and lease liabilities) less cash and cash equivalents
over total equity (including all capital and reserves attributable
to owners of the Company) was approximately 0.07 (2020:
approximately 0.03).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, no member of the Group was
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and
no litigation or claim of material importance was known to the
Directors to be pending or threatened against any member of the

Group.

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2021, there were respective capital commitments
for construction contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements amounting to approximately
HK$1.245 million (2020: approximately HK$4.330 million).

Going concern

Based on the current financial forecast and financing facilities
available, the Group has sufficient financial resources for ongoing
operation in the foreseeable future. As such, the financial

statements were prepared on a going concern basis.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31 March 2021,
Company was approximately HK$28.011 million (2020:

the total issued share capital of the

approximately HK$28.011 million) representing 560,222,136
ordinary shares (2020: 560,222,136 ordinary shares).

Details of the movement in the Company’s share capital during
the year were set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. The following is the key risk and uncertainty
identified by the Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could

turn out to be material in the future.

Market risks

PRC government policy

The Group is very concerned about external regulatory
compliance and environmental changes, and a management
team is responsible for timely collection, interpretation and
promotion of external regulatory requirements. The Group's
management, together with the business line, will also discuss
changes in the external environment, assess the impact of
regulatory requirements on the existing business, and develop
targeted countermeasures. The Group’s compliance team will
provide professional advice on the latest regulatory requirements
and conduct compliance reviews on the compliance of existing

regulations.

Operational risks

Risks of the COVID-19 pandemic. Due to factors such as the
regulatory lock-down, voluntary quarantine of people, and
delayed resumption of work and production as a result of the
epidemic, the operations of the Group may have been affected to
some extent. The Group will pay close attention and development
of the COVID-19 and continue to evaluate its impact on the

financial position and operating results of the Group.
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Foreign exchange and goodwill impairment risks

Since almost all transactions of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars, most of the bank deposits
are being kept in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars to minimise
exposure to foreign exchange risk, the Directors consider that the
Group's risk exposure to currency fluctuations to be manageable.
Therefore, the Group had not implemented any formal hedging
or other alternative policies to deal with such exposure during the

year.

Impairment test for goodwill is based on the forecast of future
cash flow and contains the management’s relevant assumptions
and professional judgements. Goodwill is exposed to certain risks

of impairment.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 178 (2020: 124) full time

employees (including Directors) as shown in the following table:
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For the year ended 31 March 2021, staff costs (including directors
emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$20.409 million
(2020: approximately HK$14.670 million). The Group remunerates
its employees based on individual performance and qualification.
Apart from the basic remuneration, staff benefits include share-
based payment, the contribution to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme, discretionary bonus and medical coverage in Hong Kong;
and basic insurance for the elderly, basic medical insurance, work
injury insurance and unemployment insurance to the employees in
the PRC.

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS
As at 31 March 2021, the Group did not have any charges on the

Group's assets.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year, the Group did not have any material acquisitions

and disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during

the year.

USE OF PROCEEDS OF EQUITY FUND RAISING

BEANBRUE
Epy AEELBREANBAT HEATR
BB EANBRIBE-

RESTEFBNMSRERR

ACTIVITIES

Date of Proposed use of Actual use of

announcement Fund raising activity Net proceeds raised proceeds proceeds

NSE EEEHZES FREEMIMERE FRERIEZBEAR FRGRIAZ ER AR

23 August 2019 Subscription of Approximately To use the net proceeds  Fully ustilised as intended
155,617,260 HK$8 million as general working at 31 March 2020

pre-consolidation
Shares at HK$0.054
per pre-consolidation
Share under general
mandate, which was
completed on

12 September 2019

—E—hE RE-—RRERSRE
NBZ-+=H HATIZ190.05478 TR

#155,617,26003 & it
ARG HERZE

—hEAB+ZHRM

6 December 2019 Issue of 373,481,424
consolidated rights

Shares at HK$0.192

per rights Share under
the rights issue, which

was completed on 24
February 2020

“E-NAETZRAARE  REHRESRHER
B 130,192 L &1T

373,481,424 & it

Rk HERZZZ
ZE_A-+NARM
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(i) HK$60 million will be
used for repayment
of a secured loan; (ii)
HK$3 million will be
used for repayment of
the unsecured loan;
and (iii) the remaining
balance of HK$5
million will be used for
general working capital
of the Group
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) acknowledges
the need and importance of corporate governance as one of the
key elements in creating shareholders’ value. The Company is also
committed to achieving high standard of corporate governance
that can properly protect and promote the interests of all
shareholders and to enhance corporate value, accountability and
transparency of the Company.

The Company strived to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance and complied with the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code") as stated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing Securities on Main Board (the “Listing Rules”) of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
During the year under review, the Company had revised the Terms
of Reference for its Audit Committee in order to fully comply
with the amendments to the Listing Rules in relation to corporate
governance that took effect since 1 January 2019.

The Company has adopted the code provisions in the CG Code
as its own code of corporate governance. Save as the deviation
from the code provision A.2.1, separation of roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to code provision A.2.1 as
disclosed in the section “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”.
The board of directors (the “Board”) considers that the Company
was in compliance with all applicable code provisions set out in
the CG Code from 11 October 2013, being the date of listing of
the Company, to the date of this Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) since 11 October 2013, being
the date of listing of the Company, up to the date of this report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its model code for
securities transactions by Directors.
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The overall management of the Company’s operation is

vested in the Board.

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters
of the Company, including the formulation and approval of
all policy matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitoring of the performance
of the senior management. The directors of the Company
("Directors”) make decisions objectively in the interests of
the Company. Currently, the Board comprises five Directors,
including two executive directors and three independent

non-executive directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wang Jia Jun (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Yung Ka Lai

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

Their biographical details and relationships among the
board members, if any, are set out in the section entitled
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”

in the annual report.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations, business strategies
and management of the Group's businesses to the
executive Directors, senior management and certain specific

responsibilities to the Board committees.
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Training and Support for Directors
The Company encourages the Directors to participate in
professional development courses and seminars to develop

and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Pursuant to A.6.5 of the CG Code, directors should
participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains

informed and relevant.

Effective from 11 October 2013, the date of listing of the
Company, up to the date of this report, regulatory updates
and relevant materials on amendments of the Listing
Rules have been sent to the Directors for their awareness
of the latest development on regulatory requirements, to
ensure that they are fully aware of the responsibilities and
obligations of directors under the Listing Rules and relevant

regulatory requirements.

Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the Directors to cover their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The coverage and the sum insured under

the policy are to be reviewed regularly.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. After the former
chairman resigned from the Company in 2014, there is no
position of the chairman. The company did not have the
chairman during the year ended 31 March 2021. The Board
considered that the existing Board members were able to
share the power and responsibilities of chairman among

themselves during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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Mr. Wang Jia Jun has been appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since 1 April 2020 and up to
the date of the report. The Company will, from time to
time, review the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate
governance structure and consider whether any changes,
including the establishment of the role of the chairman.

Appointments, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a service contract or
letter of appointment with the Company for a specific term.
Such term is subject to his or her re-appointment by the
Company at an annual general meeting upon such Director’s
retirement and offering himself for re-election.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third
of the Directors who have been longest in office since their
last election or re-election are also subject to retirement by
rotation at the annual general meeting. All retiring Directors
are eligible for re-election.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Wong Hon Kit and Mr. Ho Man both possess
the appropriate professional qualifications in accounting
and financial management. The Company has received
from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
Each of the three independent non-executive Directors has
signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a
specific term of three years.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, the Company Secretary of the Company, Mr. Tam
confirmed that he had taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the year ended 31
March 2021.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee, an Audit Committee and
a Remuneration Committee (collectively “Board
Committees”) with defined terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Board Committees are posted on the
website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange, and
are available to shareholders. Members of each of these
committees are independent non-executive Directors. The
list of the Chairman and of members of each committee is
set out in each of the following Board committee section.
The meeting procedures follow the statutory procedures for

Board meetings.

The committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and in appropriate circumstances, the
Company can retain external auditors, financial advisors and
lawyers and other relevant independent professionals to
provide independent professional advice to assist members
of the committees in fulfilling their responsibilities.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 24
September 2013 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rule and a copy
of which is posted on the website of the Company and
of the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration Committee has
adopted the approach under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of
the CG Code and made recommendations to the Board on
the Group's overall policy and structure for the remuneration
of Directors and senior management. The members of
Remuneration Committee for the year and up to the date of

this report are:

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)
Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

Mr. Wang Jia Jun
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include

(but without limitation):

(i)  making recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
the senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing

policies on such remuneration;

(i) determining the remuneration packages of all
individual executive Directors and the senior
management and making recommendations to the
Board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors;

and

(iii)  reviewing and approving compensation payable to the
executive Directors and the senior management for any
loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with the relevant contractual terms

and is otherwise fair and not excessive.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee
include the determination of specific remuneration package
of all executive Directors, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment, and making recommendations to
the Board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors.
The Remuneration Committee considers factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-

based remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet once during
the financial year. During the meeting, the Remuneration
Committee will review the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors, independent non-executive Directors and

senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings during the
year ended 31 March 2021.
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Nomination and Corporate Governance
Committee

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee
was established in 24 September 2013 with written terms
of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.1 and D.3.1
of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rule and a copy of which is
posted on the website of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange. The members of Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee for the year and up to the date of

this report are:

Mr. Wang Jia Jun (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

All of the members are independent non-executive Directors.
The primary duties of the nomination and corporate

governance committee include, but are not limited to:

(a) reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board on a regular basis and making recommendations

to the Board regarding any proposed changes;

(b) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of,

individuals nominated for directorship;

() making recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and succession planning for Directors in
particular the chairman of the Board and the chief

executive officer of the Company; and
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(d) keeping the effectiveness of the corporate governance

and system of internal controls of the Group.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee shall
meet once during the financial year. During the meeting,
the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee will
review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and review
the arrangement for re-election of all the retiring Directors
at the forthcoming general meetings of the Company and
the terms of reference of the Nomination and Corporate

Governance Committee.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee has
adopted a Board Diversity Policy (“Policy”). The Company
continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of its
Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognises and embraces the benefits
of diversity in the Board. A diversity of perspectives can
be achieved through engaging directors in possession
of gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, required experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service, etc. The composition,
experience and balance of skills of the Board are regularly
reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of members
with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside new
Director(s) appointed from time to time who bring fresh
perspectives and diverse experience to the Board. The Board
appointments will continue to be made on a merit basis
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity in the Board.
The Board will continue to review the Policy to ensure its

continued effectiveness on an annual basis.

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee held

2 meetings during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 24 September
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.2.1 of the Listing Rules and a copy of which is posted
on the website of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.
In order to comply with the amended CG Code, the
Board adopted the revised terms of reference of the Audit
Committee on 31 December 2018. The members of Audit

Committee for the year and up to the date of this report are:

Mr. Wong Hon Kit (Chairman)
Dr. Liu Yongping
Mr. Ho Man

All of the committee members are independent non-
executive Directors. The primary duties of the Audit

Committee include, but are not limited to:

(a) reviewing and monitoring the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable

standard;

(b) monitoring integrity of financial statements of the
Company and the Company’s annual report and

accounts and the interim report;

(c) reviewing the Company's financial controls, risk

management and internal control systems;

(d) reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the
code provisions as stated in Appendix 14 to the Listing

Rules.

The Audit Committee shall hold at least 2 regular meetings
in a year to review and discuss the interim and annual
financial statements of the Company. Additional meetings of

the Audit Committee may be held as and when required.
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The Audit Committee shall meet with the external auditors
at least once a year. The external auditors may request a

meeting if they consider necessary.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Audit Committee
held 3 meetings.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal control and financial reporting
matters for the year ended 31 March 2021. The Group's
audited consolidated financial results for the year ended 31
March 2021 were reviewed by the Audit Committee, which
was of the opinion that the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards and

requirements and that adequate disclosures has been made.

The accounts for the year were audited by HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. The
Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be nominated for
appointment as the auditors of the Company at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

Corporate Governance Function
The Board is collectively responsible for performing corporate

governance duties including:

(a) to develop and review an issuer’s policies and practices

on corporate governance,

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior

management;

(c) to review and monitor the issuer’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;
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(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to

employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the issuer’'s compliance with the Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Under the Company’s Code, the Board may delegate part
of the above duties to the Company’s board committees.
During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Board
has, on its own and through the Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee and Audit Committee, fulfilled the
above corporate governance duties. The Nomination and
Corporate Governance Committee assisted the Board to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management.
The Audit Committee assisted the Board to review the
Company's compliance with the Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report and the policy on compliance

with legal and regulatory requirements.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’

ATTENDANCE

CG Code provision A.1.1 prescribes that at least 4 regular
Board meetings should be held each year at approximately
quarterly intervals with active participation of a majority of
the Directors, either in person or through other electronic
means of communication.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board has held
10 meetings. All executive Directors and independent non-

executive Directors attended all the meetings.

All members of the Board and the Company's external
auditors attended the 2020 annual general meeting (“2020
AGM").
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Attendance record of each Director at the 2020 AGM and
the meetings of the Board, together with the meetings of
the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committee during the year ended 31 March

2021 are set out below.

RBE_E_—F=A=+—HLHEF
B> EEFHE_STFERRBEKX
BEREZEEH ERAEZ M RRE
LREXEREZESEHRZSREIIN
TFo

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY/ EHERY

Nomination
and Corporate
Audit  Remuneration Governance

Board Committee Committee Committee 2020 AGM
220 B k- 3
Name of Directors BEft4 28 BHZEEE FWESE LRERZE® RREFAE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Wang Jia Jun Wang Jia Junf & 10/10 NARER 33 2 171
Ms. Yung Ka Lai EET oo 1010 NARER  NARER  NARER 171
Independent non-executive Directors BuaqEs
Mr. Wong Hon Kit BERELE 10/10 33 33 1 17
Dr. Liu Yongping tIERE 10/10 33 33 22 171
Mr. Ho Man ks 1010 313 33 212 mn
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year. The Directors have prepared the consolidated financial
statements of the Group on a going concern basis, and
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently, adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards,
with applicable disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and pursuant to the relevant statutory requirements. The
Directors are also responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which reflect the financial information of the Group

with reasonable accuracy.

In respect of code provision C.1.3 of the CG Code, Directors
are not aware of material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, are set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” on

pages 58 to 67 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for
maintaining the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems to safeguard the assets of the
Group. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance

against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee is delegated by the Board to assist the

Board in fulfilling the above responsibilities.
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During the year, the Board has reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group,
which covers all material financial, operational, compliance
controls and risk management functions, and considered the
risk management and informed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function. The Board concluded that the risk management

and internal control systems are adequate and effective.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The key elements of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems include a well-defined management
structure with limits of authority, clear policies, standard
operation procedures, and risk control self-assessment
conducted for all major operating units of the Group. The
system is designed to provide reasonable assurance of no
material misstatement or loss and to manage risks failure
in operational systems and achievement of the Group's

objectives.

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that sound
and effective internal controls are maintained, but the
management is responsible for designing and implementing
internal control systems to manage all kinds of risks faced
by the Group. The operating units and support functions are
facilitated and coordinated by the management, and ensure
that risk management processes and mitigation plans follow
good practices and guidelines established in their day-to-day

operations.

The Group's risk management activities are performed by
management on an ongoing basis. The effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems is
evaluated at least annually to update the progress of risk

monitoring efforts.
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Process used to identify, evaluate and manage

significant risks

Management will assess the nature and impact of risk, and
report issues to the Board. The Group identifies outside
and inside events by reviewing its external and internal
environment and stakeholders, which have an influence
or potential influence on the Group's ability to achieve its

strategy and business objectives.

The Board, according to the risk report, would take
appropriate action to eliminate the risks. Risks which cannot
be accepted or are beyond the Company’s risk appetite are
transferred, eliminated or controlled through risk mitigation
measures. Each risk mitigation measure has a process owner
who is a Department Manager and a target completion date
is assigned to ensure accountability. Risks owners are also
responsible for monitoring the status of the risk mitigation

measures for risks under their purview.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Board and Audit Committee review the internal control
issues identified by external auditors, regulatory authorities
and management, and evaluates the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems. To further enhance control awareness,
the Group has also approved launching a whistleblowing
policy or employees to raise any concerns about possible

improprieties in any matter related to the Group.

Inside Information Policy

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination
of inside information to ensure inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is
appropriately approved, and the dissemination of such
information is efficiently and consistently made. The
Company's legal advisor also assists the Board to assess
whether the relevant information is considered to be
inside information which needs to be disclosed as soon as

reasonably practicable.
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Conflict of Interest

If a Director has a conflict of interest in relation to a
transaction or proposal to be considered by the Board, the
individual is required to declare such interest and to abstain
from voting. The matter is considered at a Board meeting
attended by Directors who have no material interest in the

transaction.

The Group also adopted certain internal control policies to

manage potential conflicts of interest.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has been appointed
as the Company’s external auditors since the Company’s
incorporation. There was no disagreement between
the Board and the Audit Committee on the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external

auditors.

The remuneration paid to the Company's external auditors,
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, in respect of audit
services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 March

2021 is set out below:

Fa E R
HEEREFTERTEBZIX S NER
FPEMNTEER ZRALTEFRRERF)
HOURERR - AREFEHARRKSZ T
TEEANGZEFHREZEFETE:SE
&=

FEETERAETABEZRRUER
BEMNZER-

B 4% 2k £ 2 A
EEEHMESHRERADEAAAD
MRIEEEEASATDZIBEY
Mo EFERBREAGERE BE-
RESERNERUA S ELRERS
I o

BE_TZ_—F=-A=+—HLEE>
MEBZRFRIFEZRBEMEM FTER
BINEZBMEREESAMEHRERA
Bl Z #rENE ST -

Amount (HK$'000)

Nature of services BRFEMEE £% (F#&x)
Audit services EIZRTE 744
Non-audit services JEEIZARTE S
Total et 744
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Group also recognises
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enable shareholders and

investors to make appropriate investment decisions.

The members of the Board, Board Committees and the
external auditors are present to answer shareholders’
questions in the annual general meeting of the Company.
Meeting circulars are distributed to all shareholders before
the annual general meeting and special general meetings
in accordance with the timeline requirement as laid down
in the Listing Rules and the articles of the Company. All the
resolutions proposed to be approved at the general meetings
will be taken by poll and poll voting results will be published
on the website of the Stock Exchange and of the Company

after the meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the
Group maintains a website where information on the
Company’s announcements, financial information and
other information are posted. Shareholders and investors
may write directly to the Company at its principal place of

business in Hong Kong with any inquiries.

J.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jia Jun (“Mr. Wang”), aged 32, was appointed
as the Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1 April 2020
and the executive Director since 31 August 2018. Mr. Wang
obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business Management from Stony
Brook University in the United States of America in 2011. He
also obtained a master’'s degree in Health Administration from
Columbia University in the United State of America in 2017. He
has 4 years of experience in the areas of business analysis and
development across major cities in the PRC and was the Vice
President (Projects Management) of the Company since 1 August
2018 and was responsible for developing and implementing
business strategies of the Company in the PRC. Mr. Wang is the
spouse of Ms. Yung, an executive Director.

Ms. Yung Ka Lai (“Ms. Yung”), aged 34, was appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 1 December 2019. Ms. Yung
obtained her Bachelor degree of Science Business Management,
specialization in Marketing from SUNY-Stony Brook University,
United States of America. She has 3 years of managerial
experience in marketing in real estate companies in the PRC. Ms.
Yung was an executive director and authorised representative
of the Company for the period between 5 August 2015 and 31
August 2018.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wong Hon Kit (“Mr. Wong”), aged 54, is an independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Wong obtained a Diploma in
Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan University in July 1991.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Wong is also the independent non-executive
director of Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited (stock code: 309)
since February 2020 and Lerthai Group Limited (stock code: 112)
since December 2018, both companies whose shares are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong was also an
independent non-executive director of Heng Xin China Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8046), a company whose shares are listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange, since June 2018 and up to 2 July
2019, the date on which its shares were delisted. Save as disclosed
above, Mr. Wong did not hold any directorship in any other public
companies the securities of which are listed on any securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years.
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Biéréfaphical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Wong has over 20 years of experience in the corporate finance
industry. He has held various positions, including chief financial
officer, director and company secretary in different companies
in Hong Kong, where he has experience in handling corporate
finance transactions such as mergers and acquisitions, capital fund

raising and restructuring.

Dr. Liu Yongping (“Dr. Liu”), aged 65, is an independent non-
executive Director. Dr. Liu is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong
and a consultant of a law firm in Hong Kong. Dr. Liu has more
than 20 years of experience in the capital market and merger
and acquisition legal services sector. Dr. Liu graduated from the
University of London with a master’s degree in law in 1987 and
from the University of Oxford with a doctor’s degree in philosophy
in 1994. Apart from his appointment with the Company, Dr. Liu
has been acting as an independent non-executive director of
Yue Da International Holdings Limited (stock code: 629, formerly
known as Yue Da Mining Holdings Limited) since June 2010 whose
shares are listed on the main Board of the Stock Exchange. Dr. Liu
was the independent non-executive director of New Provenance
Everlasting Holdings Limited (stock code: 2326) between June
2018 and November 2019 whose shares are listed on the main
board of Stock Exchange. Save as disclosed above, Dr. Liu did not
hold any directorship in any other public companies the securities
of which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or

overseas in the last three years.

Mr. Ho Man (“Mr. Ho"”), aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 14 February 2018. Mr.
Ho has over 20 years of working experience in private equity
investment and finance and is currently the managing director of
an investment holding company. Prior to that, Mr. Ho served as
an executive partner representative of a Chengdu-based private
equity investment fund from December 2011 to May 2014. Mr.
Ho worked for a Hong Kong-based private fund management
company during January 2010 to December 2013 and was the
managing director and head of China growth and expansion
capital of CLSA Capital Partners (HK) Limited from August 1997 to
October 2009.
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Mr. Ho was an independent director of Shenzhen Forms Syntron
Information Co. Ltd (stock code: 300468.57), a company listed
on the ChiNext of Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from February 2012
to February 2018; an independent non-executive director of
Momentum Financial Holdings Limited (a company listed on The
Stock Exchange, stock code: 1152) from November 2016 to July
2019; an independent non-executive director of CIMC-TianDa
Holdings Company Limited (name changed from China Fire Safety
Enterprise Group Limited with effect from 24 April 2018; stock
code: 445) from July 2015 to January 2021 and the company
was privatised in January 2021. Mr. Ho has been a director of
Shenzhen Daxiang Space Construction Co., Ltd., (stock code:
836604), a company listed on the National Equities Exchange and
Quotations since September 2015. The company was privatised in

September 2018 and Mr. Ho remains as a director.

Mr. Ho has been an independent non-executive director of
Fantasia Holdings Group Co., Limited (stock code: 1777) since
October 2009; an independent non-executive director of Fu
Shou Yuan International Group Limited (stock code: 1448),
since December 2013; an independent non-executive director of
Magnus Concordia Group Ltd (stock code 1172, formerly known
as Midas International Holdings Limited) since January 2018; and
an independent non-executive director of Grand Ocean Advanced
Resources Company Limited (stock code: 65) since 22 January
2020, all being companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Ho did not hold any
directorship in any other public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the

last three years.

Mr. Ho was awarded an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from Tsinghua University and a master’s
degree in finance from the London Business School. He is also a

Chartered Financial Analyst.
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Bi(;éraphical Details of Directors and Senior Management

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tam Sze Kin (“Mr. Tam”), aged 51, holds a bachelor’s
degree of business administration in finance awarded by Simon
Fraser University in Canada. Mr. Tam is a member of The
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada and a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Tam
has over 20 years of experience in accounting, corporate finance,
financial reporting and company secretarial field. Mr. Tam had also
held senior management positions in the listed and private limited

companies in Hong Kong.
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Report of the Directors
HAEGHE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Wanjia Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) has pleasure in presenting to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) its report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together the "Group”) for the year ended 31

March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company while its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in pharmaceutical wholesale
and distribution business, and provides hemodialysis treatment
and consultancy service business in the PRC. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 23 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of the business review as required
by Schedule 5 to Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
including future development in the Group’s business, can be
found in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of
this annual report. The above section form part of this “Report of

the Directors”.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group’s commitment to protecting the environment is well
reflected by the continuous efforts in promoting green measures
and awareness in its daily business operations. The Group
encourages environmental protection and promotes awareness
towards environmental protection to the employees. The Group
also implements green office practices such as promoting the use
of recycled papers and reducing energy consumption by switching

off idle lighting and electrical appliances.

The Group reviews its environmental practices from time to time
and will consider implementing further eco-friendly measures
and practices in the operation of the Group’s businesses and

enhancing environmental sustainability.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s operation for the year by business
activities is set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements and the paragraphs headed “Business Review"” under
the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this

annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 and
the state of the Group's affairs as at 31 March 2021 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 68 to 75 of this

report.

In order to ensure the Board maintains an appropriate procedure
on declaring and recommending the dividend payment of the
Company, a new dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) is
adopted by the Board on 8 November 2018 which aims to allow
the Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits whilst
preserving the Company’s liquidity to capture future growth

opportunities.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Dividend Policy of the Company establishes the principles to
ascertain amounts that can be distributed to its shareholders as
dividend by the Company. Subject to the applicable law and its
Articles, the Company’s dividend payout will be determined based
on available financial resources, investment requirements and

taking into account optimal shareholders return.
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Report of the Directors

ER A N

While determining the nature and quantum of dividend payout,

the Board would take into account the following factors, inter

alia:

. Our financial results;

° our cashflow;

° our shareholders’ interests;

o general business conditions and strategies;
o our current and future operations;

o our liquidity and capital requirements;

o taxation considerations;

o statutory and regulatory restrictions; and

o any other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 204 of
this report. The summary does not form part of the audited

consolidated financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group acquired property, plant and equipment at cost of
approximately HK$9.411 million during the year. Details of the
movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS
The Group’s employees in the PRC participate in defined

contribution schemes provided by the relevant provincial and
municipal governments under which the Group and the employees
in the PRC are required to make monthly contributions to these
schemes in accordance with relevant requirements. The Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC contribute funds to the pension in
accordance with the requirements of the relevant provincial and

municipal governments.

The Group has arranged the Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee whereby each of the Group
(the employer) and the Hong Kong employees make monthly
contributions to the scheme in accordance with the relevant

legislation.

Details of the Group’s contributions to the retirement benefit
schemes are shown in Note 32 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes

in equity on pages 72 to 73 respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to applicable statutory provisions of the Cayman Islands,
the Company did not have reserves available for distribution to the
Shareholders as at 31 March 2021.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-

rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2021, there were no purchase,
sale or redemption of the Company’s listed securities by the

Company or any of its subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The Group's largest customer accounted for approximately
15.93% of the Group’s revenue and the Group’s five largest

customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 37.79%.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the aggregate amount
of purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
represented approximately 48.26% of the Group's total value
of purchases. The Group's largest supplier accounted for

approximately 13.97% of the Group's total value of purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders, which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interests in the share

capital of the five largest customers and suppliers of the Group.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the year

and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wang Jia Jun (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Yung Ka Lai

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Hon Kit

Dr. Liu Yongping

Mr. Ho Man

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company's Articles of
Association, Mr. Wong Hon Kit and Dr. Liu Yongping, the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, will
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

All other Directors will continue in office.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set on pages 34 to 37 of this annual report. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the

independent non-executive Directors are independent.
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Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Wang Jia Jun has been appointed as an executive Director of
the Company by way of a service contract with the Company for
an initial term of three years commencing on 31 August 2018
which will continue thereafter until terminated by either party
giving to the other party not less then three months’ notice in
writing. Mr. Wang Jia Jun has entered into a letter of employment
with the Company to act as the Chief Executive Officer with effect
from 1 April 2020.

Ms. Yung Ka Lai has been appointed as an executive director of
the Company by way of a service contract with the Company for
an initial term of three years commencing on 1 December 2019
which will continue thereafter until terminated by either party
giving to the other party not less than three months’ notice in

writing.

Mr. Wong Hon Kit has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company by way of letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 April 2013 which will continue thereafter
until either the independent non-executive Director or the
Company may terminate the agreement by giving the other party

not less than three months’ notice in writing.

Dr. Liu Yongping has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company by way of letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 27 February 2014 which will continue
thereafter until either the independent non-executive Director or
the Company may terminate the agreement by giving the other

party not less than three months’ notice in writing.

Mr. Ho Man has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company by way of letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 14 February
2018 which will continue thereafter until either the independent
non-executive Director or the Company may terminate the
agreement by giving the other party not less than three months’

written notice in writing.
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has any service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the heading “Continuing connected
transactions”, no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interests whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS
A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity
against liability incurred by Directors is currently in force and was

in force throughout the year ended 31 March 2021.

REMUNERATION POLICY
The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on merit,

qualifications and competence of employees.

The remuneration policy of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the Group’s operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and those of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021
are set out in Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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Report of the Directors

HEGFHRS ““

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

Disclosure of Interests

(a) Directors’ interest and short position in the securities

of the Company

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares of the Company (“Shares”), underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which will have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein or which will be required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
the Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long position in Shares and underlying Shares of the
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RERERG RIGHERG ZFE

Company
Total Total Approximate
interests interests in percentage
in ordinary underlying Aggregate of issued
Name of Director Nature of interests Shares Shares interests Shares
HERT
REERZ RERRKGZ 30
ERlY EamtE et R Bz BHES
(Note 3)
(Pi#5E3)
Mr. Wang Jia Jun Interest of spouse 156,862,198 2,500,000 163,155,611 29.12%
("Mr. Wang”) (Note 1)
Wang Jia Junfc & @
(Twang%t %) (FifsE1)
Beneficial owner - 3,793,413
BEEEEA
Ms. Yung Ka Lai Corporate interest 156,862,198 - 163,155,611 29.12%
("Ms. Yung”) (Note 1)
SEBERL (§kt) NEE T
(FF3E1)
Beneficial owner 2,500,000
BERBEEA
Interest of spouse - 3,793,413
fo @ HE s
Mr. Wong Hon Kit Beneficial owner - 140,419 140,419 0.03%
("Mr. Wong") (Note 2)
HEREE (ERE) BERBEEA
(Mi3E2)
Dr. Liu Yongping Beneficial owner = 140,419 140,419 0.03%
(“Dr. Liu") (Note 2)
ZBFEL (L)) BERBEEA
(MsE2)
Mr. Ho Man Beneficial owner - 140,419 140,419 0.03%

("Mr. Ho") (Note 2)
g s (MaksEl) (MsE2)
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#

48

Notes:

1. Mr. Wang is the beneficial owner of 3,793,413 share options.
Mr. Wang (being the spouse of Ms. Yung) is deemed to be
interested in 2,500,000 share options owned by Ms. Yung.
Power King Investment Development Limited” (“Power
King”), a company wholly-owned by Ms. Yung, owns a total
of 156,862,198 Shares. Each of Ms. Yung and Mr. Wang is,
therefore, deemed to be interested in the 3,793,413 and
2,500,000 share options respectively and the 156,862,198
Shares held by Power King, under the SFO.

2. Mr. Wong, Dr. Liu and Mr. Ho are interested in share options
which can be exercised to subscribe 140,419 Shares, 140,419
Shares and 140,419 Shares, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Directors
of the Company were not aware of any other person (other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who
had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only.
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(b) Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions

in shares and underlying shares

As at 31 March 2021, other than the interests of a director
or chief executive of the Company as disclosed under the
heading “Directors’ and chief executive’s interest in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations” above, the following persons
(not being a director or the chief executive officer of the
Company) have an interest or a short position in Shares
or underlying Shares which would be required to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

(b)
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Shares total issued
Name Nature of interests (Long position) Shares
HBET
AL ECE
W aiE EDtE RIF&E (F8) RS 4o
Power King (Note 1) Beneficial owner 156,862,198 28.00%
B (MFsE1) BmEAA
Expert Wealth Investments Limited  Interest in controlled corporation 156,862,198 28.00%
(Note 2)
Expert Wealth Investments Limited R EHIEEEDR (MiE2)
Grand Harbour Finance Limited Interest in controlled corporation 156,862,198 28.00%
(Note 2)
ShBMFBEBR AT REEREEERE (ME2)
Ng Kwok Fai Beneficial owner of controlled 156,862,198 28.00%
corporation (Note 2)
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510)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Power King is interested in 156,862,198 Shares. The issued
share capital of Power King is wholly-owned by Ms. Yung.
Mr. Wang is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which
Power King is interested in under the SFO.

Based on the notifications filed to the Company,
156,862,198 Shares owned by Power King were pledged
to Grand Harbour Finance Limited. Grand Harbour Finance
Limited is wholly owned by Expert Wealth Investments
Limited and Mr. Ng Kwok Fai is the controlling shareholder.
As all these companies were deemed or taken to be
interested in all the security in 156,862,198 Shares by virtue
of the SFO, and therefore Expert Wealth Investments Limited
and Mr. Ng Kwok Fai were deemed to have approximately
28.00% of interest in the Company as at 31 March 2021.
To the best of the knowledge, information and belief of
the Directors, after having made all reasonable enquires,
Grand Harbour Finance Limited and its ultimate owner(s) are
independent from and not connected with the Company and
its connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rule).

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their

spouses or children under 18 years of age were granted or

had exercised any rights to subscribe for any securities of the

Company or any of its associated corporations.

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

Bzt

Kzt :

BB 156,862,198 R R
HoHBENBRTRABHERL2ERE
BoRIEE S RAERG > Wangft £
RIERBBEEERNROPEEE

E‘io

REBERAXATRRZBNZ HiZE
B2156,862,198 B 17 1K 18 F 5L %
MBEAERAT - AhEMBERAT M
Expert Wealth Investments LimitedZ®
BERARREBREAZERKR B
RIBBEESRBERA -MEZER
B RAREERN 156,862,198k k1%
HFr AR A # % » B LE > Expert
Wealth Investments Limited % 2 BIE 5
ERBAREFRIRINR_E_—F=
BA=+—HM&28.00%EH - IEES
RIEH—UI S BEHBAFRA -FER
WiE SADEMBEERARNRERKES
ANBURFTATRERAEAL (EER
LHiRA) BEE M ERAE

BREXFIRBESIN BIEREFAREFL
BHARWIBRZFREERTFHEGITMRE
ERAARER AR SNEEAABART
R85 Z EF) o



Report of the Directors
HAEGHE

SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED TO DIRECTORS EFERESERFZIBIGE

AND EMPLOYEES
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in KRB BRI R 2 BRI N BRETE —& -
the Share Option Scheme section.

During the period ended 31 March 2021, details of share options HE_Z_—F=ZA=+—HLBHEAR REER
granted to the Directors and employees under the Share Option BzEREGE EEREERETEREZFHE

Scheme of the Company were as follows: mE:
Approximate
No. of ercenta?e of
share options the underlying
No. of exercised/ No. of shares
No.of  share options cancelled/  share options for the share
share options ranted durmg lapsed durin outstanding options
outstandmg the year ended  the year ende as at outstandlng
Exercise price 31 March 31 March 31 March in the issue
Date of grant Exercisable period HKS 1 April 2020 2021 )?‘Zigz“l 2021 Shares
EE
_ REE  _ZE--E mEins
e _-%-_-% =R :I—E e 2
RZE_2§ =B :I—EI L %F _m;-—; i %
gl 28%aE ﬂ%g K %wé T a%‘% &2
- TIER 3 2 1L 2 3
EHAm e 8 seARE DR wmRm  WHEE CRD
%gctors
Mr. Wan 26 October 2018 26 October 2018 - 26 October 2028 0.668 1,293,413 - - 1,293,413 0.23%
Wang#t “E-\E+A “E-\ETA”173HE
Z+7H _i NE+BZ+7H
2_4%5@\%2020 24 Ap_m\ 2020 24 A%ﬂ 2030 0.190 - 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 0.45%
T mRZtmE st
Ms. Yung 24 April 2020 24 April 2020 - 24 April 2030 0.190 = 2,500,000 = 2,500,000 0.45%
Elen ZZ°% ZZ_ZENR_+MAEE
mAZ+mA ZB=REMAZTMA
Mr. Wong 26 October 2018 26 October 2018 - 26 October 2028 0.668 40,419 - - 40,419 0.01%
BRE —2-)\&+H 2 \ETA_t/HE
b = ZE_\EtEZ15A
24 April 2020 24 Ap_m\ 2020 - 24 A%ﬂ 2030 0.190 - 100,000 - 100,000 0.02%
ot Yo 7 E-FEMA-{MAE
mAZ+mA T CEEENp- WA
Dr. Liu 26 October 2018 26 October 2018 - 26 October 2028 0.668 40,419 - - 40,419 0.01%
At ZE-N\E+A 5 _E+H_+/\E_‘_§
_+/\E }\E‘I’H AN El
24 April 2020 24 Apr\\ 2020 - 24 A%ll 2030 0.190 - 100,000 - 100,000 0.02%
ZZ2-% ZEMA_+NEE
mAZ+mA _v_vﬂEFJ ‘I'El
Mr. Ho 26 October 2018 26 October 2018 - 26 October 2028 0.668 40,419 - - 40,419 0.01%
i ZE-\ETH CE-\ETA-tARE
i Y ZE0\ETBAZTR
24 April 2020 24 Apﬂ\ 2020 24 A%H 2030 0.190 = 100,000 = 100,000 0.02%
= ZE_SEMA_4MAE
mAZ+mA _7_§EH !
Totg 1,414,670 5,300,000 = 6,714,670
l:l U
1EEmE[I)onees 2_6i0ctc))i;rzo18 26 Octot\);rfés j_6 OEctober 2028 0.668 11,689,222 B 11,689,222 2.09%
R —_z— = #NAE
+AZ+7/H —_Z_\EtHE_1xH
Z_ﬁliép_ri\%ZOZO 24 Ap_m\ 2020 24 A%I 2%30 0.190 - 13,370,000(Note) S 13,370,000 2.39%
—_— == 3‘_
mEZ+mA —%-% @H 0 (M)
Total 11,689,222 13,370,000 - 25,059,222
l:l D
ka@JPd total 13,103,892 18,670,000 = 31,773,892 5.70%
a3
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Note:

Among the 3,900,000 share options granted to the employees of
the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC, these share options are
exercisable in the following manner:

(i) up to 30% of the share options granted to each grantee shall
be exercisable on or after 24 April 2020 to 23 April 2021;

(i)  up to further 30% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 24 April 2021 to 23
April 2022; and

(i) all the remaining 40% of the share options granted to each
grantee shall be exercisable on or after 24 April 2022 to 23
April 2023, and in each case, not later than 24 April 2030.

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in
the shares of the Company (“Shares”), underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which will have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which will be
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded
in the register referred to therein or which will be required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) contained in
the Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed under the headings”Directors’ and chief
executive's interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the company and its associated corporations” and “Share
Options Granted to Directors and Employees” above and
particulars of the Share Option Scheme as set out in Note 38
to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures
of the Company or any other body corporate and neither the
Directors nor the chief executive, nor any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
On 24 September 2013, the Company adopted a share option

scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) whereby the Board can
grant options for the subscription of our shares to the employees,
managerial staff and senior employees and those other persons
that the Board considers that they will contribute or have
contributed to the Group (the “Participants”) as described in
the Share Option Scheme in order to serve as compliment and to
reciprocate their contribution to the Group. As at 31 March 2021,
the maximum number of shares that can be issued according
to the Share Option Scheme was 56,022,213 shares, which is
equivalent to 10% of the issued capital of the Company. The
number of options that may be granted pursuant to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued
shares immediately after the completion of the listing on the Stock
Exchange. Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting, the number of shares that may be
granted to a Participant under the options shall not exceed 1%
within any 12-month period (other than those granted to the
substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or the independent non-executive Directors or any of
their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules)), or the
total number of shares that may be granted under the options to
the substantial shareholders of the Company or the independent
non-executive Directors or any of their respective associates
shall not exceed 0.1% of the shares in issue of the Company
from time to time. There is no minimum period that the options
must be held before they become exercisable, and the options
granted shall be exercised within the period decided by the Board;
however no options shall be exercised 10 years after they have
been granted. The exercise price of the option shall be the higher
of (a) the closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the average
closing price of the shares on the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (c) nominal value of the share. Each grantee
shall pay a consideration of HK$1.00 at the time the option is
granted. The Share Option Scheme shall take effect from the date
it is adopted and shall remain effective within a period of 10 years
from that date.
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MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions are set out in Note

34 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had entered into a number of transactions with
connected parties which, upon the listing of the Shares on the
Stock Exchange, became connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. These transactions are continuing
connected transactions exempt from the independent
shareholder’s approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Details of the continuing connected transactions are as follows:

Tenancy agreement entered into with Mr. Wang lJia
Jun (“Mr. Wang”)

On 28 June 2019, Grand Motion Investments Limited* FEE&
BEABMRAKT ("Grand Motion”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into a car rental agreement (“Rental
Agreement”) with Mr. Wang which for rental of motor car. The
term of the lease is from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 with a
rental amount of HK$15,000 per month for the motor car and is

renewable upon the signing of a new rental agreement.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, under the annual cap,
and the total rental charge paid, the Group’s total transaction
amount with Mr. Wang contemplated under Rental Agreement
was HK$180,000.

. English translations of official Chinese names are for identification

purpose only.
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Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions required
to be disclosed as non-exempt connected transactions or non-
exempt continuing connected transactions in accordance with the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2021. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company, Mr.
Wong Hon Kit, Dr. Liu Yongping and Mr. Ho Man have, for the
purpose of Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that such
continuing connected transactions, for the reporting period, have

been entered into:

(i)  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favorable to
the Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate)

independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions and on terms that are fair and reasonable and in

the interest of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company as applied the code provisions set out in the
CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Since
its listing on the Stock Exchange, the Company has complied
with the code provisions of the CG Code for the year ended 31
March 2021, save for the exceptions explained in the Corporate

Governance Report in this report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2021, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and

regulations by the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on publicly available
information and the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has sufficient public float as required under Rule 8.08 of

the Listing Rules.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The Directors are not aware of any significant events requiring
disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 March 2021 and

up to the date of this report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2021 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited who will retire at the forthcoming Annual General

Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(“AGM") will be held on Friday, 10 September 2021 at Suite
1801, 18/F.,, Tower 1, The Gateway, Harbour City, 25 Canton
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The register of members of the
Company will be closed from Tuesday, 7 September 2021 to
Friday, 10 September 2021, both days inclusive, during which

period no transfer of shares will be effected.

In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30

p.m. on Monday, 6 September 2021.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jia Jun

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 June 2021
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Independent Auditors’ Report
Mg N7 A% BRI

il S I N
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wanjia
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 68 to
203, comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting

policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued
Key audit matters

MBEEE

-

PEEFE &

How our audit address the key audit matters

EAETEARMARIEMRENHR

Impairment assessment on goodwill

A

Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3 to the consolidated

financial statements.

BRBGEFHFRRE20URGEMBRERMAIZ G HE-

The Group has goodwill of approximately
HK$96,500,000 relating to provision of hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy service business in the PRC
as at 31 March 2021. The management performed
impairment assessments of the cash generating units
and concluded that no impairment loss on goodwill
was recognised during the year ended 31 March 2021.
AEBMBMR -_SE—F=B=+—HRHEHRRMHD
BB AR EHRBER ZEHE47396,500,000748
o EEERREESBUETRENLLST HER
RBE_Z_—F=A=+—HULEFEHENESER
RREEE

The management performs an annual impairment test
on the recoverability of the goodwill which is subjective
in nature due to judgments having to be made of
future performance.
EEEHHEZAKREIMETEERENS  HVA
RERRRBELHZAGMAESEEH-

The valuation of goodwill performed by an
independent professional external valuer based on the
value in use calculation. The valuation requires the
application of significant judgement and estimation
by the management in determining the appropriate
valuation methodology to be used, use of subjective
assumptions and various unobservable inputs. The
valuation is sensitive to underlying assumptions applied
by the valuer such as pre-tax discount rates and growth
rate used and cash flow projection which can have a
significant impact to the valuation.

B ERINBEEMAAETZHEBLENERERE
BEREZ - HEERAEEENEERFERAZE
EfELFE - THERBRI[AERIETTERE AME
MmiEH Z ERHE R st - ZAEREEMERZE
FERRABRE  AINHEESELEERTEZRR
AR RFTAZIEREURRERERA
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Our procedures in relation to the management’s
impairment assessment of goodwill included:

HRAMEEESBERENGETHNREFERE

o Engaging our valuation expert to evaluate the
assumption and methodologies used in the
calculation;

s EBHFHEEERTEAERERANKREKREE

o Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based on our
Knowledge of the relevant industry;

o  MERMNBRITEMMT(ERRERNTG ERRERE
BRENEEMY

o Evaluation of management Independent valuer's
competence, capabilities and objectively;

o FMEEEBIUGEMNEE -EHARETEHN

o Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of business and industry;
and

e MEBRMBEBRTENNS BREAEBRKRNE
B &

o Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

o  HRBEMRBNBABIRNEREREMME-

We found that the management’s judgment, estimates,
assumptions and methodologies made in respect of the
impairment assessment on goodwill were supported by
available evidence.

BAR BB EBRETEFE 2 EEEHE - LR
RAERAUENERSZS-
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PEEFE &

How our audit address the key audit matters

BAETEABFNAEEMREN SR

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 5 R IA R E 5T G

Refer to Note 5(b) and Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 3 to

the consolidated financial statements.

BRI S M BRRM S O) KM EF22 ARG EMBRARMEAIZEHEER -

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$24,771,000 and
allowance for credit losses of trade receivables of
approximately HK$9,835,000. Provision is made for
lifetime expected credit losses on trade receivables.
RZEBE_—%=F=+—H> E£ENEZEKX
THAREEA 7524,771,0008 0 MBS EIKREZEE
E5181 549439,835,000/ 8 Lo BT 7L B 57 R IE
NWEHRARESHEEED -

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment
on allowance for credit losses of trade receivables
included:

MEEEHESRWRBZEEHEREEFTGEMS  HM
ZREFEE:

o Understanding the credit control procedures
performed by management, including its procedures
on periodic review of aged receivables and
assessment on expected credit losses allowance of
receivables;

e HEREEENTHNEEEEER CEHHNTHE
R RIE R L ERIATRBEEHEERE
NERF ;

o Testing on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing
profile of trade receivables by checking to the
underlying sales invoices;

s ZFERTHBHEEZERE WHMERAFXAAZZRK
IRRARE, 2 ZEHE S

o Testing on a sample basis, the subsequent settlement
of trade receivables against bank receipts; and

o DR AXHRIBITHENEE S BRI
HENENBER; &
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS - continued
Key audit matters

MBEEE

!
el
PEEFE &

How our audit address the key audit matters

EAETEARMARIEMRENHR

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 5 MUk 15w B 5T

Management applied judgement in assessing
the expected credit losses. Receivables relating
to customers with known financial difficulties or
significant doubt on collection of receivables are
assessed individually for provision for impairment
allowance. Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on shared
credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for likelihood of recovery, taking into account the
nature of the customer, its geographical location and
its ageing category, and applying expected credit
loss rates to the respective gross carrying amounts
of the receivables. The expected credit loss rates
are determined based on historical credit losses
experienced and are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables.
EEEANGRBEERERERAE BREAEMEM
5PN B 5 B E E AR AE D WK DI R WCRRIERY &= FE W Rk IE
EEBLTGEHRERE SHAKRERME  HithiB
BERREERN  TEARFRERUZRENLZEER
BRBOME LRSS TERWA e ERREEES
B LREARRAEEGERNERBRIERRE R
FHEEEEXNREECEEHESREE K
HEURBREARAEEER I EEREHEE
WRIERE NN EBRKBERE -

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the
trade receivables and the estimation and judgement
involved in determining the expected credit losses
allowance of the trade receivables.
BPNERZEESRBERENEEREEZEES
FEUWRIR 2 TRHR(E B B 1R B B P 09 e RO (i 5t TR 3 i T
REELERS o
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o Obtaining management’s assessment on the
expected credit losses allowance of receivables.
We corroborated and validated management’s
assessment based on the historical settlement
pattern, correspondence with the customers,
evidence from external sources including the
relevant public search results relating to the financial
circumstances of the relevant customers and market
research regarding the relevant forwardlooking
information such as macroeconomic factors used in
management’s assessment.

e HMEEEENRUNREFRHAGEEHBEREENTGE-
EMERBTEMRN - AX P EM KRB IR
RIENFER (BREEAT A NMBARRAER A RE
RER) URBEBAREERNTIBMR SE LR
EEEENA M ANEEREEIMTRNEREER

2EER-

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation
and judgement made by management in respect of the
expected credit losses allowance and the collectability of
receivables were supported by the available evidence.

ER L& E BMEREEBMEWRIERBEEHE
B R T W B R R St RRFVER AT 1S B 2 5 o



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements

and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other
Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

Independent Auditors’ Report
Yy 37 A% BRI

EERHHMENAETE HMENSETIH
RERANER EFELEREMBRER
HPZEBAMRE ((HMER) -

BAHGEMBRRNBEREFTREHME
o RFATAHZEFEMERNZEREATR
RIEER G R o

HERPHGEEMBRROEST RFANE
ERFEABHMER  TIBREP TEAME
HMESRREMBRRAKMAEESFBESD
FiTRNBRAEFEEAEBRECUFEEE
AHERBRIBEIER - BN EMAERTHIMGE
MRBFARBSHEMENFEEAERERA
HPRERSHFE-EEAE RMARERE
(OE: =1

ESRBERZETMRSMBR
RARENTE

EFRREREFRGHMLGEMII(EE
M B REER) RBB(QATERHDIKERE
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HHERMERNERHERERAPA TR B E
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- continued

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s

internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

Independent Auditors’ Report
Yy 37 A% BRI

REMMEB RESMBERRAXK
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

REMMEB RESMBERRAXK
ENEE-E

STATEMENTS - continued

66

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS - continued

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguard applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this

independent auditors’ report is Tien Sun Kit, Jack.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tien Sun Kit, Jack
Practising Certificate Number: P07364
Hong Kong, 28 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
e H HoAth 4 i i s % >

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE_ZE_—F=A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5 FHAT FHET
Revenue 1§23 8 114,086 96,977
Cost of sales $HE R4S (72,750) (71,625)
Gross profit EH 41,336 25,352
Other revenue Hh e 597 158
Other gain and loss, net Hit & R B518 > /358 10 (102) 219
Provision of allowance for expected B REMBWRIERIZE
credit losses on trade and other Z TR ERER AR
receivables and deposits, net R RE 5(b) (2,409) (3.617)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEHR (24,987) (17,139)
Administrative expenses THRHZ (16,524) (14,443)
Loss from operations EEEEEE 11 (2,089) (9,470)
Finance costs &R 12 (1,338) (11,089)
Loss before taxation PRIR AR5 IR (3.427) (20,559)
Taxation HiE 15 (1,050) (308)
Loss for the year TEEESE (4,477) (20,867)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ZEEHMEEIE  (5518)
for the year
Items that may be reclassified HREBAFEENTHEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmZ2HE -
Exchange differences on translating of B EBINEBXEKZ
foreign operations PERERR 15,490 (9,738)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ZEEHMEEIE  (5518)
for the year 15,490 (9,738)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ZHEEZEE ~ (E518)
for the year Faker] 11,013 (30,605)

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
o 15 B HAth 4 i i 2 3R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 2 —E_—F=H=+—RLFE

2021 2020
—g—F —EIEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Ffd 5 FHAT FHET
Profit/(loss) for the year LUTFALTEMN
attributable to: TEEHN (B518) :
Owners of the Company PiNETE =N (4,536) (20,744)
Non-controlling interests JEER S 59 (123)
(4,477) (20,867)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) M T ATRELAFERE
for the year attributable to: 2miE (§518) 4% -
Owners of the Company KATEEA 10,797 (30,332)
Non-controlling interests JEER S 216 (273)
11,013 (30,605)
Loss per share TATEE ARLESAEIE -
attributable to owners of
the Company:
— Basic and diluted —BEARN RS
(HK cents per share) (€=2:9=3(11)) 17 (0.81) (9.88)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

B R EREMBREZ D
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

-
2 I\ By
fr e M AR I 3R v
As at 31 March 2021 RZZ-—F=HA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—% TECTE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5E F#ET FET
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- BB KR E 18 39,444 34,319
Right-of-use assets FREEE 19 20,660 22,802
Goodwill 5k 20 96,500 89,010
Deposit paid for property, plant and M E BB K
equipment REZ NS 22 471 1,439
157,075 147,570
Current assets MENEE
Inventories =78 21 9,587 7,435
Trade and other receivables and B 5 KREMMEWIE R
deposits B 22 31,826 26,894
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEBFER 24 25,099 24,801
66,512 59,130
Current liabilities piiit I B=N i}
Trade and other payables B 5 REMELRIE 25 20,832 23,114
Lease liabilities HEAaRE 26 2,528 2,640
Amount due to directors FE{SEEHIE 27 7,050 1,200
Amount due to a shareholder FE{t— % RERRIE 27 1,200 =
Tax payables FE(S#R I 1,306 520
32,916 27,474
Net current assets RENEERE 33,596 31,656
Total assets less current liabilities BEHERTEBAE 190,671 179,226
Non-current liabilities EREIEE
Lease liabilities HEaf 26 19,596 20,891
19,596 20,891
Net assets BEEE 171,075 158,335
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
wr e B AR Il 3R

As at 31 March 2021 R=2-—F=H=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—= —ETE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i FET FHET
Capital and reserves B KB

Share capital &N 28 28,011 28,011
Reserves #fE 141,298 128,774

Equity attributable to owners of RRTEB AEILER
the Company 169,309 156,785
Non-controlling interests JEER R 1,766 1,550
Total equity Rz 4R 171,075 158,335

The consolidated financial statements were approved and FEMBRRNR-ZEZ—FAZ+/\BE
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2021 EEEHEREENE THTINESEAR

and signed on its behalf by: =E .
Wang Jia Jun Yung Ka Lai Wang Jia Jun EEE
Executive Director Executive Director HITEE HITEE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMM A ZE R MBRERZ —89
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2021 E—E_—F=H=+—HItFE

-

Attributable to the owners of the Company

Share Share Other  Share option
capital premium reserve reserve
23 RifEE At BEREMS
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EYAGE SN
Non-
Contribution Translation Statutory  Accumulated controlling
reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interest Total
R ERHE HERE BithR gt FERER L b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEr TERr TEr TER TERr TERr TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
At1 April 2019 R-E-nEmE-R 7,781 417 (2869) 3,944 866,811 (1,309) 26,429 (794,190) 84,948 50,147 135,095
Loss for the year FEEER - - - - - - - (20,744) (20,744) (123) (20,867)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FEEEM2ESR NRHER
net of income tax = = = = = (9,588) = = (9,588) (150) (9,738)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEEREFRLE - - - - - 9,588) - (20,744) (30,332) (213) (30,605)
Placing of ordinary shares (Note 28) RELER (H32) 1,556 6,847 = - - - - - 8,403 = 8,403
Transaction costs attributable to placing of ~ REEBREMERBAE
ordinary shares - (447) - - - - - - (447) - (447)
Issue of rights issue (Note 28) B (528) 18674 53,034 = - - - - - 71,708 = 71,708
Transaction costs attributable to rights issue ~ EREHERAAE - (3312) - - - - - - (3312) - (3312)
Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary's equity  B{EWE-EHBARZRiE
interest (Note 37) (f337) B - 25817 - - - - - 25,817 (48,324) (22,507)
Deregistration of a subsidiary HHE-HHRAT - - - - - - (10,140) 10,140 - - -
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTITRE - - - - - - 1,868 (1,868) = = =
As at 31 March 2020 RZE-FE=RA=1-H 28,011 60,299 (2,878) 3944 866,811 (10,897) 18,157 (806,662) 156,785 1,550 158,335
Profit/loss) for the year TEEET/ (5B) - - - - - - - (4536) (4536) 59 (a471)
Other comprehensive incomef(loss) for the year, AEEHEMEENE/ (B8 »
et of income tax MRFRR - - - - - 15,333 - - 15,333 157 15,490
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year  AEE2ENE / (1) BE - - - - - 15,333 - (4,536) 10,797 216 1,013
Share-based payment (Note 33) MRHAERZ A (H533) - - - 171 - - - - 1721 - 1,727
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTITRE - - - - - - 1319 (1319 = = =
As at 31 March 2021 W-E--£=B=+-R 28,011 60,299 (2,878) 5,671 866,811 4436 19,476 (812,517) 169,309 1766 171,075
Notes: MisE :
(a) Other reserve (a) Hihe
The other reserve represented the difference between the B Eis A AT FRIKERNBAT/MAS
Company’s shares of nominal value of the paid-up capital of AR EEERA AT R E AR
subsidiaries acquired over the Company’s cost of acquisition of the 122 8 (e B A B 2 B S WU 48 1 Ui BE — RS Bt
subsidiaries under common control upon the reorganisation and BAS Z BRI ELE
deemed acquisition of a subsidiary’s equity interest.
(b) Share option reserves (b) BE AR

The reserve represents the fair value of the actual or estimated
number of unexercised share options grants to eligible persons,
including any full-time and part-time employee, director,
consultant or advisor of the Company and its subsidiaries
recognised in accordance with the share option scheme.

79 WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

ZHEFBERBREREASERINKETS
BERAL (BEAQAAKEMBAREMNR
B R REES EE A AR BER
TREERENERIGHHRENQTE



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2021 2 —E_—F=H=+—RLFE

Notes: — continued

(c)

(d)

(e)

Contribution reserve

Capitalisation of the outstanding amount of approximately
HK$866,811,000 due from Timely Hero Enterprises Limited
(“Timely Hero”) to Hua Xia Healthcare Holdings Limited (“Hua
Xia”) on 3 September 2013 in consideration of (i) the allotment
and issue 1 share of US$1 in the share capital of Timely Hero to
Luxuriant Expand Global Investment Limited (“Luxuriant Expand”),
credited as fully paid up, at the direction of Hua Xia; and (ii) the
allotment and issue of a total of 100 shares of US$1 each in the
share capital of Luxuriant Expand, all credited as fully paid up, to
Hua Xia in consideration of its receipt of 1 share in Timely Hero
at the direction of Hua Xia. Details of the reorganisation were set
out in the paragraph headed “The Reorganisation” in the section
headed “Corporate history, development and Reorganisation” in
the prospectus dated 30 September 2013.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 3.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the Peoples’
Republic of China (the “PRC"”), the subsidiaries of the Company
establishing in the PRC shall set aside 10% of its net profit after
taxation for the statutory surplus reserve fund (except where the
reserve balances has reached 50% of the subsidiaries’ paid up
capital). The reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by
the Board of Directors and by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

-
A BRI RE >
For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE_ZE_—F=A=+—HILFE
-
2021 2020
—g_—F —EBEH
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pd 5E FHET FHET
Operating activities SEXEW
Loss before taxation R A% Al B 48 (3.427) (20,559)
Adjustments for: HEER
Interest income FSWA 9 (92) (110)
Interest expenses on other borrowing —~ Hthf& &z F 8B 12 - 10,113
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEaGEZFERE 12 1,338 976
Depreciation of property, plant and ME -BERREITE
equipment 18 7,180 5,211
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FERESENE 19 3,067 2,073
Provision of allowance for expected B 55 & WK T8 e L i g Ukt
credit losses on trade receivable and MEREEZBHES
other receivables and deposits, net BB EHIE B8 11 2,409 3,617
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary  :F$H—RIM B AR Z Uk 10 - (553)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME -BER
equipment HREZE1E 10 102 334
Gain on lease modification e’z & 19 (24) =
Share-based payment UM AERZ AR 11 1,727 =
Operating cash flows before BEEE5HAE
movements in working capital EERERE 12,280 1,102
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =8 @m R (1,475) 2,855
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other B 5 KEfthEURFRIE
receivables and deposits R¥& (#m) R (3,105) 23,578
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B 5 R EL M FE I w18
other payables @, CRL) 231 (4,648)
Cash generated from operations XBFERE 7,931 22,887
PRC enterprise income tax paid EHMPEEERER (320) (984)
Net cash generated from operating EiEXIEFREBRSFLE
activities 7,611 21,903
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2021 2020
Note HK$000 HK$'000
b 2 T T
Investing activities BEER
Interest received BUYF 2 9 92 110
Purchase of property, BEYE -BRERKE
plant and equipment 18 (11,956) (9,337)
Deposit paid for property, ME -BERZEBEZEMZE
plant and equipment - (1,439)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME -BERSZEZFRE
plant and equipment E | 29 102
Net cash outflow in respect of RIERE—FHNERATEZ
deemed acquisition of R ZIRE R FEEE
a subsidiary’s equity interest 37 - (22,507)
Net cash used in investing activities REXHEFAARS FEE (11,835) (33,071)
Financing activities MERH
Interest paid BAFE - (10,113)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHREARE (3,723) (2,302)
Repayment of other borrowings EEEMER - (60,000)
Net proceeds from issue of BITHEERGDZ
new placing shares FriS 1B 3 58 28 - 7,956
Net proceeds from rights issue % 2 FTiS TR IE R 58 28 - 68,396
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to B EE Kk —L KRNI
directors and a shareholder a0, Geib) 7,050 (800)
Increase in amount due to e —RBIEALTZ
a connected person FRIEE N 1,000 4,200
Net cash generated from financing FIBEEEFREBRSFLE
activities 4,327 7,337
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERFELEIER
cash equivalents ¥, GRL) BEE 103 (3,831)
Cash and cash equivalents at FMZRERFEEEHEE
the beginning of the year 24,801 28,816
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SMNEME XSS 7 & 195 (184)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZ[ERFEEEHEE
at the end of this year 25,099 24,801

The accompanying notes form an

consolidated financial statements.

integral part of these

EMME AR SR BREZ &7
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.
GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted Company
with limited liabilities in the Cayman Islands. The Company's
immediate holding company and ultimate holding company
is Power King Investment Development Limited, a company
incorporated in British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and the
Company shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The address of the registered office of the Company is
Second Floor, Century Yard, Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1103, Cayman Islands. The head office
and principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong is located at Suite 1801, 18/F, Tower 1, The Gateway,
Harbour City, 25 Canton Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings.
The Group is principally engaged in pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution business, and hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy service business in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The activities of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“"HK$"), which is the same as functional
currency of the Company, and the functional currency of
The

Board of Directors considered that it is more appropriate to

the most of the subsidiaries are Renminbi (“RMB”).

present the consolidated financial statements in HK$ as the
shares of the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange. The
consolidated financial statements are rounded to the nearest
thousands (HK$°000), unless otherwise stated.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS
Standards and the following amendments to HKFRSs issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™) for the first time, which are mandatorily effective
for the Group’s annual period beginning on 1 April 2020 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3  Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The application of the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or the disclosures set out

in these consolidated financial statements.

2.
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") — continued
Amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 16
Amendments to
HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 10

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to
HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments’

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concession*

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase2?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between and Investor And its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current And
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5(2020)'

Property, Plant and Equipment —
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020?

Disclosure of Accounting'

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction'

COVID-19 Related Rent
concession beyond 30 June
20216
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APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“"HKFRSs") — continued
Amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective — continued

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021

The directors anticipate that the application of all new and

amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

2.
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.
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basic of preparation of consolidated financial
statements
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA. For the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Law
of Hong Kong).

Going concern assessment

The directors of the Company have, at the time of approving
the consolidated financial statements, a reasonable
expectation that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future. Thus, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated financial

statements.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial

statements.

A summary of significant accounting policies followed by
the Group in the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements is set out below:
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Basic of preparation of consolidated financial
statements - continued

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is historical cost except
for certain financial instruments and investment property
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting

period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration of given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as

net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Basic of preparation of consolidated financial
statements - continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;
o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

-

3. MEMBERBREEREKX
BEIHR -8

SAMBRRGENBE-&

o M BHREBNMS > A FEF
ERBATEAEWARBIUBRREE
REBABBHATEFEZERERZN
ARBE—B - FE_RIAFE=H>ABW
T

s FE—MRBARBABEREINGE
HEDZAEEEXR RN TR
mIHH (RAERE) RE S

s FE_BBAREBABEENREA
ERSEZRERENEBARE GTA
F—RBEBERD ; K

e FZBRBABBABEENRRGHN
FHBRBARIE-

FEEHBEREIIM T



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A o W 5 R 2R PR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 2 —E_—F=H=+—RLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its

subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:
o has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and
o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee

if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Basis of consolidation - continued

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group's voting rights in an

investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

o the size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote

holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

o rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at
previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiaries and ceases when the Group
loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and
expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Basis of consolidation - continued

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies - continued
Basis of consolidation - continued
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity

and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 or, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint

venture.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognized

in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definitions of an asset and a liability in the Framework for
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
(replaced by the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in October 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2

Share-based Payment at the acquisition date;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies - continued
Business combinations — continued
o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held

for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current

Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are

measured in accordance with that standard; and

o lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of

the lease when compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as

a bargain purchase gain.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Business combinations — continued

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRSs.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment

would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized
as of that date.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies - continued
Business combinations — continued
When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments against
goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that

existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that is
classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured to fair value
at subsequent reporting dates, with the corresponding gain

or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business

less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Goodwill - continued

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash — generating Units (or groups of
CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the

combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for

goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss

on disposal.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies — continued
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are

held for use in the service, or for administrative purposes.

Property, plant and equipment is stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying mount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

Construction in progress in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for

their intended use.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Property, plant and equipment - continued
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, using the straight-line
method, over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms

Motor vehicles 20%
Office equipment 20%
Medicine equipment 20%

The gain or loss arising from disposal of an asset is
determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, and is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other

comprehensive income.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets other than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the

extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to

which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of

cash-generating units.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets other than goodwiill

- continued

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the

estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset
is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets other than goodwiill

- continued

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date/settlement date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or

convention in the market place.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;

and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting

contractual cash flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the
date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income (“OCI") if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognized by an acquirer in a business combination to

which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of

short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or

significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued
Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the determination that the

asset is no longer credit impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
loss (“ECL") on financial assets which are subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9 (including trade
receivables, other receivable and deposits) which are subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in

credit risk since initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the

reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade

receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since

initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue

cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit

spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to

meet its debt obligations;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

Significant increase in credit risk — continued

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant

increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).
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.
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
— continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

Definition of default — continued

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit— impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The
Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables using a provision matrix taking into consideration
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial instruments — continued

Financial assets — continued

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets — continued

Measurement and recognition of ECL — continued

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on
a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as forward-

looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration

the following characteristics when formulating the grouping:
. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar

credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated

based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables
and other receivables and deposits where the corresponding

adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralised

borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and

an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or

cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured of

amortised cost using effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amounts due to directors, amount due to a shareholder and
lease liabilities) are subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest method.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount

of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration

paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, other costs that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition, is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less all estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the

Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
positions, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not

restricted to use.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance

obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognized
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of

the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as

the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group

performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Revenue from contracts with customers

- continued

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is

due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to same

contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

The wholesale and distribution of pharmaceutics and related
products

Revenue from the wholesale and distribution of
pharmaceutical and related products is recognised when
control of the products has transferred, being at the point
the products are delivered to the customer and the customer
has accepted the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of
the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specified location, the risks of obsolescence
and loss have been transferred to the customer, and either
the customer has accepted the products in accordance with
the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed,
or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for

acceptance have been satisfied.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Revenue from contracts with customers

- continued

The wholesale and distribution of pharmaceutics and related
products — continued

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract, net of discounts, returns and value

added taxes.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered
and the customers accept the products, as this is the point in
time that the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Provision of hemodialysis treatment and consultancy services
Revenue from the provision of hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy services which are recognised at a point in time

when the services are rendered.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are recognised as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 2 —E_—F=H=+—RLFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Employee benefits — continued

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at
the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the
changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return
on plan assets (excluding interest), is reflected immediately
in the consolidated statement of financial position with
a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement
recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected
immediately in retained earnings and will not be reclassified

to profit or loss.

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the
period of a plan amendment or curtailment and a gain or
loss on settlement is recognised when settlement occurs.
When determining past service cost, or a gain or loss on
settlement, an entity shall remeasure the net defined benefit
liability or asset using the current fair value of plan assets
and current actuarial assumptions, reflecting the benefits
offered under the plan and the plan assets before and after
the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement, without
considering the effect of asset ceiling (i.e. the present value
of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds
from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the
plan).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued
Employee benefits — continued

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability
or asset. However, if the Group remeasures the net defined
benefit liability or asset before plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement, the Group determines net interest for the
remainder of the annual reporting period after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement using the benefits
offered under the plan and the plan assets after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement and the discount
rate used to remeasure such net defined benefit liability or
asset, taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability or asset during the period resulting from

contributions or benefit payments.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

o service cost (including current service cost, past service
cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements);

o net interest expense or income; and

© remeasurement.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Employee benefits — continued

Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the
earlier of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw the

offer of the termination benefit and when it recognises any

related restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset. A liability is recognised for
benefits accruing to employees (such as wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave) after deducting any amount
already paid. Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-
term employee benefits are measured at the present value
of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion

in the cost of an asset.
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.
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies - continued
Share options granted
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and

others providing similar services are measured at the fair

value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share options
reserve. For share options that vest immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share options granted is

expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share capital and share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share

options reserve be transferred to accumulated losses.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable and
deductible.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial

recognition of goodwill.
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.
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies - continued
Taxation — continued
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in

the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of

its assets and liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Taxation - continued

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to

the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption. Temporary
differences arising from subsequent revision to the
carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities,
resulting from remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease
modifications, that are not subject to initial recognition
exemption are recognised on the date of remeasurement or
modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is

included in the accounting for the business combination.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. Where the effect of the
time value of money is material, the amount of a provision
is the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligations.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, they will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is
virtually certain, an asset is recognised.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms

of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to

interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in

order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary

items.
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.
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies - continued
Foreign currencies — continued
For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to

profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in
connection with the borrowing of funds. All borrowing costs
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income in the period in which they

are incurred.

Government Grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be

received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated statement
of financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a
systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the

related assets.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such

grants are presented under “other revenue”
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued

Related Parties Transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

124

A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of

the Group or of a parent of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Related Parties Transactions — continued

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies: — continued

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the Group's parent.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 3. REMBRREGHREBLEREK
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SHBE—E
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies - continued EXGHHR-B
Related Parties Transactions — continued Rt A5 — &
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following (b) MRS TFIEEMELSE —HEREB
conditions applies: — continued MAEEBRE . —&
Close family members of an individual are those family — B ATHIEREEZALTEHE
members who may be expected to influence, or be RETXRZEFFEBETHEERR
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the BYZHEENKERE
entity.
(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic (a) BALTWFLKEBIE
partner; B 1= ;
(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic by TBATHWEBIHEEHRE
partner; and HNFL; &
(c) dependants of that person or that person’s (0 ZHBALTHEEBHEREMF
spouse or domestic partner. A transaction is BEHNZEA-

considered to be a related party transaction when
there is a transfer of resources and obligations

between related parties.

A transaction is considered to be a related party E-EHRXZAKRBEAERZENE
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or R EEEE ARG ARAER
obligations between related parties. R5°
Leases g
Definition of a lease HENER
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the MREORTFRAMUANBRZBER —
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of REAEZEGRERERNEE  AIREGH
time in exchange for consideration. BREExEIHEE
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Leases — continued

Definition of a lease - continued

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently

changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative standalone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components, including contract for acquisition
of ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless

such allocation cannot be made reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated

non-lease components as a single lease component.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued

The Group as a lessee - continued

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

— continued

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of carpark and office that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured a cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies — continued

Leases — continued

Right-of-use assets — continued

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-

use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprises:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;
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.
BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued
Significant accounting policies — continued
Lease liabilities — continued

o the amount expected to be payable by the Group

under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted

by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised

discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial

discount rate.

The lease liabilities are presented as a separate line item in

the consolidated statement of financial position.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued

Lease liabilities — continued

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate

lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;

and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of

the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at

the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of

the non-lease components.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
- continued

Significant accounting policies - continued
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial information, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, management is required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES - continued

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors have made in the
process of applying the Group accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Useful lives and impairment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
The Group estimates the useful lives of property, plant
and equipment in order to determine the amount
of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful
lives are estimated at the time the asset is acquired
based on historical experience, the lease term, the
expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well
as technical obsolescence arising from changes in the
market demands or service output of the assets. The
Group also performs annual reviews on whether the
assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid.
The Group tests annually whether the assets have
suffered any impairment. The recoverable amount of
an asset or a cash generating unit is determined based
on the higher of its value in use or its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. These calculations
of the value in use are determined based on cash flow
projections with reasonable assumptions that represent
management’s best estimate of the range of economic
conditions over the remaining useful life of the assets.
Changes in facts and circumstances may result in
revisions to whether an indication of impairment exists
and revised estimates of recoverable amounts, which
would affect profit of loss in future years. And the fair
value less costs of disposal is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date.

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020,
the Group did not recognised any impairment loss for
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES - continued

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has
been impairment of goodwill in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 3. The recoverable
amounts of CGUs are determined based on value-inuse
calculations and fair value less costs of disposal. The
calculation of value-in-use require the use of estimates
and assumptions made by management on the future
operation of the business, pre-tax discount rates,
and other assumptions underlying the value-in-use
calculations. And the fair value less costs of disposal is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between

market participants at the measurement date.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group had
not recognised any impairment loss on goodwill (2020:
Nil) and disclosed in Note 20.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and
other financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets at amortised
cost are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group's past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Detail of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in Note 5(b).

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the
Group trade and other receivables and deposits are set
out in Note 5(b) and Note 22.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5. EMTHR
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) E=RTRERN
2021 2020
g% TECTE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Financial assets MEEE
Measured at amortised cost S HR A 5T 2
— trade and other receivables — B 5 REMEWRIE
and deposits RiEE 30,023 24,435
— cash and cash equivalents —REKIAEEEEE 25,099 24,801
55,122 49,236
Financial liabilities BHiEaE
Measured at amortised cost R R AS 5T =
— trade and other payables — B REMEMRIE 20,832 23,114
— amount due to directors —E{EEFIE 7,050 1,200
— amount due to a shareholder — B — % BRERIE 1,200 -
— lease liabilities —HE&aE 22,124 23,531
51,206 47,845
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136

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables and deposits, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other payables, other
borrowing, amount due to a shareholder, amounts due
to directors, and lease liabilities. The details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate
risk and currency risk. The directors review and agree
policies for managing each of these risks and they are

summarised below.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from bank
balances, trade and other receivables and deposits.
The carrying amounts of these balances represent the
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to

financial assets.

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk
is considered to be low as the counterparties are
reputable banks. The existing counterparties do not
have defaults in the past. Therefore, expected credit
loss rate of cash at bank is assessed to be close to zero
and no provision was made as of 31 March 2021 and
2020.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. *MTA-&
(b) HERBEEEERKE—&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment

In respect of the deposits and other receivables, the
credit quality has been individual assessed by general
approach with reference to historical information
about the counterparties and financial position of the
counterparties. The Group recognised the allowance
for expected credit losses by assessing the credit
risk characteristics of deposits and other receivables,
discount rate and the likelihood of recovery and

considering the prevailing economic conditions.

In respect of the trade receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach to provide for expected credit
losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of
the lifetime expected credit loss provision for all trade
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics. The Group has performed
historical analysis and identified the key economic
variables impacting credit risk and expected credit
loss. It considers available reasonable and supportive

forwarding-looking information.

The Group makes periodic assessments on the
recoverability of the receivables based on the
background and reputation of the customers, historical

settlement records and past experience.

158 & B i (B T 1
MEERHEMEBKRENS 8
HEE2ZARMRBHFZESE
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5.

138

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment

- continued

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received from
individual customers in relation to wholesale and
distribution of pharmaceutical and related products
and provision of hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy services. The Group’s trade receivables
arise from wholesale and distribution of pharmaceutical
and related products and provision of hemodialysis

treatment and consultancy services.

As at the end of the year, the top five debtors
accounted for approximately 59% (2020: 50.2%)
of the Group’s trade receivables balance. In view of
the history of business dealings with the debtors and
the sound collection history of the receivables due
from them, management believes that there is no
material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
receivable balance due from these debtors saved for
the debtor related to the impaired trade receivables

disclosed in the below.

Management makes periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables based
on historical payment records, the length of overdue
period, the financial strength of the debtors and

whether there are any disputes with the debtors.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment

- continued

Provision matrix — debtors” ageing

As part of the Group's credit risk management, the
Group uses debtors’ ageing to assess the impairment
for its customers in relation to its wholesale and
distribution of pharmaceutical and related products
business and provision of hemodialysis treatment and
consultancy services business because these customers
consist of customers with common risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’ abilities to
pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual
terms. The following table provides information about
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which
are assessed based on provision matrix as at 31 March
2021 and 2020 within lifetime ECL.

5.

EMIA-&
(b) MBEEAREEEERBE—E

155 B B il (B 5T 1 — 4
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment

- continued

Provision matrix — debtors” ageing — continued

-

5. ST A&
(b) HERAKETERERKE &

155 B B il (B 5T 1 — 4

7 1 2B [ — B Ak TR AR b — AR

Gross
Average carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
THEEE HERMEE ESiEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET F#ET
As at 31 March 2021 RZFEZ—4F
=A=+—H
Current (not past due) ENHE (k7 HA) 1.2 8,255 102
1 - 90 days BHA1EIOR 3.9 5,084 200
91 — 180 days #HA91E 180K 54.2 1,888 1,023
Over 180 days past due  HHA BB 180K 89.2 9,544 8,510
24,771 9,835
Gross
Average carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
5] GEES HEREE ik di]
% HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TFHET
As at 31 March 2020 RCEZFEF
=A=+—H
Current (not past due) ENER (R HA) 3.9 2,513 98
1 - 90 days AHE1EIOXR 9.9 8,421 837
91 — 180 days AHA91E 180K 74.6 2,256 1,683
Over 180 days past due  #HAEA 180K 100.0 5,224 5,224
18,414 7,842
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. EMIRA-&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) MEREEEEHERBE—E

policies — continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment EE AR R BTk — 4
— continued
Provision matrix — debtors’ ageing — continued P E D — fE N B AR b — 48
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on o 51 &5 48 2 75 & 72 FE UK 7R 18 T8 4B
historical observed default rates over the expected life AFERAFERRNEEMEZELE
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking HNE MR BREMHBEZH A
information that is available without undue cost LA EFHAIEMEEREL
or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by AWM AHEAEIERE TS
management to ensure relevant information about BEAMIBERWHRENERSE
specific debtors is updated. HEEHo
Trade receivables are written off when there is no BEZRWHRERSGEFER®EZERK
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that =] B 4 £ o & I8 B R B 0K WX B A9 35
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, REE EPERE) GHBAREEAR
amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a EETLEREE UK KREZ
repayment plan with the Group, and a failure to make BHABE2EN S AIFRIE
contractual payments for a period greater than 2 years
past due.
Allowance for expected credit losses on trade BEEWRBEZEREEHEE
receivables are presented as net impairment losses EREEENANEINARERBE
within operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of B -HBWE Z al E M58
amounts previously written off are credited against the MRMEEEE AR e

same line item.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group RBEE_Z-_—HF=R=+—H
recognised approximately HK$1,993,000 (2020: IFE  ANEBMRBBEEHERRE
reversal of allowance for expected credit losses of SEWRIERTTEIREEBIEE
approximately HK$882,000) of allowance for expected %%91,993,0008 T (ZE 224 .
credit losses on trade receivables, based on the THHA(S BB 1E# A [E149882,000
provision matrix. ABIT) °
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5.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment

- continued

Internal credit risk grading categories

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment

comprises the following categories:

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Written-off

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

There is evidence indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty and
the Group has no realistic prospect of

recovery

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
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Credit risk and impairment assessment

- continued

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the

maximum exposure to credit risk based on the

Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on past

due information unless other information is available

without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

5. *MIA-&

(b) HBEABEEARREE-E

155 B B il (B 5T 1 — 4

RE AR R F R
TRITBBEAEBZEEBRE
(PRIEF|MAMBEBEIREIRE N
BBz HEMERS > FTAITL
FEERBEFAHEN) EEH
ERFMAZHNEREEEERBE AR
RIEZ—FErRZZZZF=H
=+—BZFRBERDE

12-month
ECLs
12{8R Lifetime ECLs
RHEEHR RUBEMEEEE
Stage 2 Stage 3
(non-credit (credit Simplified Allowance Average
Stage 1 impaired) impaired) approach Total ECL loss rate
4:7) K&3 RHiEE
E&1 (BEEHE (EEHE) fi{tiE A BEEE  TYEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
TER TERT TER TER TERT TER
At 31 March 2021 R-2Z-%=A=+-AH
Trade receivables ERRkE - - - 24,11 4,11 9,835 39.7
Other receivables and deposits At EUTEREE 9,153 13,037 - - 2,190 7,103 320
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEER 25,099 - - - 25,099 - -
34,252 13,037 - 24,1 72,060 16,938
12-month
ECLs
12088 Lifetime ECLs
BHEEER £
Stage 2 Stage 3
(non-credit (credit Simplified Allowance Average
Stage 1 impaired) impaired) approach Total ECL |oss rate
1) RE3 BHiEE
&1 (BEEAB (EEHE) & Azt BEBE  THEEX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
TER TEn TER TEw TEn TER
At 31 March 2020 RZE-EF=A=1-H
Trade receivables BRENTE - - - 18,414 18,414 7,842 426
Other receivables and deposits AT EREE 8,525 12,025 - - 20,550 6,687 325
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREEEER 24,801 - - - 24,801 - -
33,326 12,025 - 18,414 63,765 14,529
BEREEZERARAR 143
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5.
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

-

ERMTHEH-&

(b) MZERAKREEBERBE-
policies — continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment EE RS RET L&

- continued

RZEBE_—FER-Z_-_ZHF=A
=S+ HREBHBAEAAEZES
FEWRIEREMMBEENRR
BERERAVSEEREZHIE

The closing loss allowances for trade receivables
and other financial assets at amortised cost as at 31
March 2021 and 2020 reconcile to the opening loss

allowances as follows:

o
Other
Trade receivables
receivables  and deposits Total
Hth U TRIE
BB EWRIE Rizg fast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
F#ET F#Ew F#RT
As at 1 April 2019 RZZ—HAFMA—H 11,726 2,188 13,914
(Reversal)/provision of loss FAREERER
allowance recognised in profit ~ E5#E#EHE (&@)
or loss during the year, net 5T R EE (882) 4,499 3,617
Written-off as uncollectible 1 5 AR = U [ (3,002) - (3,002)
As at 31 March 2020 RZIEZZE
=B=+—H 7,842 6,687 14,529
Provision of loss allowance FAREERIEZ
recognised in profit or loss EiER AR B8
during the year, net 1,993 416 2,409
As at 31 March 2021 RIZEZ—%
=B=+—H 9,835 7,103 16,938
Liquidity risk TENE & B R

MPEERABABLIERESRE
TR & A EE > B /R R IR
BEERERSHERIENE
F-AEEK—MBRT REBHE
MBER LRERERFTERE MU
FEGERENE S -

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available
to meet liabilities as they fall due, and it results
from amount and maturity mismatches of assets and
liabilities. The Group will consistently maintain a
prudent financial policy and ensure that it maintains

sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements.
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued
Liquidity risk - continued

The following tables detail Group’s contractual

maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables have been

drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of

financial liabilities which are the earliest dates of the

Group can be required to pay. The tables include both

interest and principal cash flows.

EMIA-&
(b) MBEEAREEEERBE—E

RENE & B &

TERFINEERMBEBRZEHN
HEABER ERREBAEERER
HEBHZMBERERAERES
MEBRHE TREFEMNERTER
E i

o

flo

Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective or within Over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
MEFH RERY FHRLE
BRAE R—FR BR—F MEME REfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEr TERn TEr
At 31 March 2021 R-8_—-%=B=+-H
Trade and other payables BAREMERNTE - 20,832 - 20,832 20,832
Amount due to directors i NEE A - 7,050 - 7,050 7,050
Amount due to a shareholder FEff—& R RAIE - 1,200 - 1,200 1,200
Lease liabilities HEafE 5.8 3,788 27,487 31,275 22,124
32,870 27,487 60,357 51,206
Weighted
average On demand Total
effective or within Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1 year cash flows amount
MEF BREXY FHRRE
BRAX R—FR BE—F Pkt fREfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT THET THERT
At 31 March 2020 RZE_2£=B=1-H
Trade and other payables BoREMEMTE - 23,114 - 23,114 23,114
Amounts due to directors EEZHE - 1,200 - 1,200 1,200
Lease liabilities HEafE 5.8 3,959 29,342 33,301 23,531
28,273 29,342 57,615 47,845
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5.

146

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity management
rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework
for the management of the Group's short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the

maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has no available
unutilised short and medium-term bank loan facilities
(2020: HK$ Nil).

Interest rate risk
As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group did not
hold any assets and liabilities which are exposed to

interest rate risk.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued 5. *MTA-&
(b) HERBEEEERKE—&

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies — continued

Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity's

functional currency.

The main operations of the Group were in the PRC and
most of the transactions were denominated in RMB.
Foreign exchange risk arises from the foreign currency
denominated of commercial transactions, assets and
liabilities. The Group has no significant direct exposure
to foreign currencies as most of the commercial
transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in
a currency as the functional currency of each entity of

the Group.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

B¥ERE
EXRKBEXZACHIEER
BEMIFUZBERZINELERS
& AgEEIERE -

FEBTERPRHAEEXEF BX
AR ZUARESE - 5IME B R
REUSNESHEZBERZ BE
REBEE-HRABIBERZ B
ERBBZFAEEBHEEAERSR
BREZWESRER  Eit4AER
AR ERERINE R -

AEERFKITEEAARMIIMNER
ZEERERIINEHHER-
AEEREEREIINERRE > I
ENETERETRHPEAING
JELB

BEREEZERERAR
= 2020/21 Ei& 147



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
or o BE 55 i 3R Y 5

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE_ZE_—F=A=+—HILFE

5.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies — continued
Fair value measurement
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

(i)  The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid and ask prices
respectively.

(i)  The fair values of other financial assets and

financial liabilities are determined in accordance

with generally accepted pricing models (e.qg.
discounted cash flows analysis using observable

and/or unobservable inputs).

The carrying amount of other financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost, approximate their
respective fair values due to the relatively short-term

nature of these financial statements.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital

during the reporting period.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued 6. BHEAKREE-E
The Group monitors capital to ensure that entities in FERBERER UBRAEENZE
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern BRENRGEREESE RFEBE®L
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the BRERANTE AR HATRRAK
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group Bl MIREME > AEBENERBREK
overall strategy remains unchanged during the reporting Al fe 4 o
period.
The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, other AEBNEXARBCREES  HME
borrowing, amount due to a connected person, amount E- B —RBAEALTZRE-BNE
due to directors, amount due to a shareholder and lease ERE-EN—SSREREREES
liabilities, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable E-RERFAETEEEBEURERT
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital BEEARLED (BEEEITRAKRRE
and reserves. f&) o
2021 2020
—E-—F —EIEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Debt (note (a)) &% (fsE(a)) 36,574 29,931
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEBER (25,099) (24,801)
Net debt (LR 11,475 5,130
Equity (note (b)) #zm (M%) 169,309 156,785
Gearing ratio BEEABLER 0.07 0.03

notes:

(a) Debts represented by amount due to a connected person,
amount due to directors, amount due to a shareholder and
lease liabilities.

(b)  Equity includes all capital and reserves attributable to owners
of the Company.

MiE

(a) MEBEEY—RMEATZRIE EMY
EEmE BN —RRERERBEES

f&e

(b)) BECEFIARNEBABGENAREER
AR ft s o
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7. OPERATING SEGMENT 7. EEDHE
Information reported internally to the chief operating MEEEERREABE2RUEERD
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and FERFAZDSBRIRZER  ThZEERF
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of REUFIREZERIRFEE -KEEH
goods or services delivered or provided. The Group organised HABAMESESSE  RPEZ(a)%
into two operating divisions: (a) pharmaceutical wholesale it R DI ETR > K(b) MR BB E
and distribution business, and (b) hemodialysis treatment KRABHREET ZEDELAEERE
and consultancy service business in the PRC. These divisions WREDEEN 2B
are the basis on which the Group reports its segment
information.
Segment revenue and results SEWEKRES
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BHE_T_—F=A=+—HLHFE
Hemodialysis
Pharmaceutical treatment and
wholesale and consultancy
distribution service
business business Consolidated
~ | MRS
Emlt R BB REEH
TEHET RFSEF Ta
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FET
Revenue &
Revenue from external REIMBEE Z U !
customers 58,771 55,315 114,086
Results E 4 |
Segment results DEEEER 156 7,947 8,103
Unallocated corporate income KRB ELZ EHEWA K
and expenses, net T BEE (10,192)
Loss from operations SiEE1E (2,089)
Finance costs & A (1,338)
Loss before taxation PRIR ARSI (3,427)
Taxation 18 (1,050)
Loss for the year KEEEIE (4,477)
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OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Segment revenue and results — continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020

7. SERE-&
DHEBNERESE—E
BE_ S ZEHF=-HA=+—HLEE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and

Hemodialysis
treatment and

consultancy

distribution service
business business Consolidated
R B
Zm bR BB KB
DIHEF RIS EF RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Revenue 1§
Revenue from external KEINBEE Z W=
customers 69,523 27,454 96,977
Results Ef
Segment results PaEE 500 (994) (494)
Unallocated corporate income RO A2 KA K
and expenses, net T PEE (8,976)
Loss from operations EIEEE (9,470)
Finance costs &R (11,089)
Loss before taxation PRI AIES 18 (20,559)
Taxation s (308)
Loss for the year REEEE (20,867)
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FE

—F=RA=1+—HIFE

el

OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Segment assets and liabilities
For the year ended 31 March 2021

-

7. EEREE
NERERARE

BE—_TZ

—E=A=+—ALEE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and

Hemodialysis
treatment and
consultancy

distribution service
business business Consolidated
miRER
BEoitER AEREH
DEHEFRE RIEERE =5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT F#ET F#ET
Consolidated statement of 4 &I AR
financial position
Assets B5E
Segment assets DEEE 35,985 87,479 123,464
Goodwill e - 96,500 96,500
Unallocated corporate assets ~ KROBMZIEEEE 3,623
Consolidated total assets GEBEEME 223,587
Liabilities =R
Segment liabilities DEAE 7,242 26,113 33,355
Amount due to directors e EERIE 7,050
Amount due to a shareholder  FE{t—% IG5 2R IE 1,200
Unallocated corporate liabilities RO zEXEE 10,907
Consolidated total liabilities GEBaEMEEE 52,512
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7. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Segment assets and liabilities — continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020

7. EEREE

NHEEEREE-

BE_ZT_

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and

Hemodialysis
treatment and
consultancy

5
PE=A=+—HiILER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 2 —E_—F=H=+—RLFE

distribution service
business business Consolidated
R B
BRI ER BE RS
DIHET IRFEEFE o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Consolidated statement of 4 &K RER
financial position
Assets 5E
Segment assets DEEE 28,569 81,365 109,934
Goodwill HE - 89,010 89,010
Unallocated corporate assets KOz XEEE 7,756
Consolidated total assets CEEEHE 206,700
Liabilities afE
Segment liabilities DEEE 8,237 26,432 34,669
Amount due to directors FE{EEIE 1,200
Unallocated corporate liabilities kO Az ¥ & & 12,496
Consolidated total liabilities e BaEEE 48,365

BEREEZERERAR 153
202021 3R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

w3 S 5 2R B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &

7.

154

OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

FE

Other segment assets and liabilities
For the year ended 31 March 2021

-

—F=RA=1+—HIFE

el

7.

EENE IR
HttpERER

BE—_TZ

af\

—E=A=+—ALEE

Pharmaceutical
wholesale and

Hemodialysis
treatment and
consultancy

distribution service
business business Unallocated Consolidated
& ER
BRltER AEREH
DIHER PR EH XAE Foae]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FER FERT FER
Other information HitE
Capital expenditure (note) BEARRER () 167 9,540 - 9,707
Depreciation neE 800 8,040 1,407 10,247
Loss on disposal of property, HENE -BERREZ
plant and equipment B 102 - - 102
Provision/(reversal) of allowance for B 5 REMERFIER
expected credit losses on trade and &2 BHEEEE
other receivables and deposits, net &R/ (&) »
e (210) 2,619 - 2,409
Finance costs HHEER 37 1,185 116 1,338
Interest income ST N 84 7 1 92
note: B 5E :

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment and right-of-use assets during the year.
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7. OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Other segment assets and liabilities — continued
For the year ended 31 March 2020

7.

SENE—E
HitpAEEREBE—E&
HE_ZE_EX=-HA=+—HIEE

Hemodialysis
Pharmaceutical treatment and
wholesale and consultancy
distribution service
business business Unallocated Consolidated
& E
BoHtER Vbt
DIHER PRAS R b iy o)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAET TAT THET
Other information HitE
Capital expenditure (note) EeNERA(E) 91 14,648 3,057 17,796
Depreciation E 757 6,439 88 7,284
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME BEREZEHEZ
plant and equipment 518/ (k) 344 - (10) 334
Provision/(reversal) of allowance for B8 REMERTIER
expected credit losses on trade and & &Z BEAEEHGEE
other receivables and deposits, net st/ (B[E) - B (2,485) 6,102 - 3,617
Finance costs HHER 89 877 10,123 11,089
Interest income FIE A 97 10 3 110

note:

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment and right-of-use assets during the year.

B 5E -

BEARAZBERERFEZYE BE KRR
BUREREEE-

BRERZRARAR
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OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Other segment assets and liabilities — continued

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note
3. Segment results represent the profit or loss generated
by each segment without allocation of finance costs and
taxation. Unallocated corporate expenses mainly include
directors’ remuneration and other central administration
costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and

assessment of segment performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than unallocated corporate assets. Unallocated
corporate assets mainly include office equipment,
certain right-of-use asset and cash and cash equivalent
of the central administration companies and certain
deposits and other receivables. Goodwill is allocated to

reportable segments as described in Note 20.

o all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
other than, amount due to directors, amount due
to a shareholder, certain lease liabilities and certain
other payables and accrual expenses of certain

administrative.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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OPERATING SEGMENT - continued
Geographical information

The Group operates in two principal areas—pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution business, and hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy service business in the PRC and

administrative activity operates in Hong Kong.

The Group's revenue is solely generated from external

customers in the PRC.

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-
current assets analysed by the geographical area in which

the assets are located:

EENE-&

ERN
AEENWEEEAREE-ETEHE
TR i 3 ) S T R I BT 5
REARBEBRESSEBEEY
FEo

FEBMZREEEMRENFEOSIERE
Eo

UTRBEEMEMED T ZIFRBE
EZREED

Carrying amount of

non-current assets

ERBHEELZIREE
2021 2020
—E—F | ZB22H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Hong Kong 5A 2,828 2,972
PRC I 154,247 144,598
157,075 147,570
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158

OPERATING SEGMENT - continued

Information about major customers

il

Revenue from customers over 10% of the Group’s total

revenue are as follows:

-

EENE-&
FREEERZEN

fi 7 58 [ 48 U 35 HR3B 1 0% 2 8 B IR 24 11
T

2021 2020

—SI-F | ZTB2HF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FHTT

Customer A 18,282 22,287
Customer B 15,259 18,186

Customer A and customer B are both relating to

pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution business.
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8. REVENUE 8. W=
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: FR RERKRZOHANT
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
Revenue from contracts with customers RRE—EFR R & A
recognised at a point in time: SR
Wholesale and distribution of BEORERERME R H
pharmaceutical and related products 58,771 69,523
Provision of hemodialysis treatment and R MR BN AR KRB AR
consultancy services 55,315 27,454
114,086 96,977
All revenue contracts are for one year or less. As permitted FrERZE SR A —FHUT M
by practical expedient under HKFRS 15, the transaction price EARAUBREENFISHNERER
allocated to unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. A EIRESREERBITEANR

ZEE -

BEREEZERERAR
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.
OTHER REVENUE 9. Hfthigzs
2021 2020
—E-—%F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FAET
Interest income A EUmA 92 110
Government subsidies (Note) BUF#6Bh (fFsE) 486 =
Sundry income HIEIWA 19 48
597 158
Note: B 5% -

10. OTHER GAIN AND LOSS, NET

160

During the year ended 31 March 2021,

the Group successfully

applied for funding support from the Employment Support Scheme

set up by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative

Region, the purpose of which is to provide financial support to

enterprises and to retain their employees who would otherwise

be made redundant. Under the terms of the Employment Support

Scheme, the Group is required not to make redundancies during the

subsidy period and to spend all the funding on paying wages to its

employees.

R&EE_T_—F=-A=+—HILEFE &
EE MR FEEBRIITHREBNRILZ MR
MEIGTEER ZEEMENEREFERM
M E URBAEERENNES - RIR
MRELE SRR AEBY AT B AR
FARHE LRAAEMREARXTER

#rago

10. H s B 548 > 7 88

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Loss on disposal of property, HEME -BERSEZEIE
plant and equipment (102) (334)
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary BYOH 5% it — FE Bt /8 2 B 2 Wi & - 553
(102) 219
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The Group's loss for the year from operations is arrived at
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1. BEBEEEE
R AEMSELE S ERDENR

after charging: TIEBE®BER
2021 2020
—SI—F | ZTBEH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFHET
Staff costs: BTEHMA:
Employee benefits expense (including EBEEFRE
directors’ emoluments (Note 13)): (BIEESME (M45E13)) -
Salaries and allowances e R R, 17,828 13,889
Retirement scheme contributions BIAEEHEIHR 854 781
Share-based payment (Note 33) MR AERZ AR (HzE33) 1,727 =
20,409 14,670
Other items: Hithgg :
Depreciation of property, plant and W2 BB KRBT E (5E18)
equipment (Note 18) 7,180 5,211
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAEEERE (fsE19)
(Note 19) 3,067 2,073
Auditors’ remuneration %S EM AN <&
— audit services —BIZRE 744 839
— non-audit services —IEB LIRS - 183
Cost of inventories sold BEFEERAK 72,750 71,625
Provision of allowance for expected credit B S REMBEKRRIERIZE
losses on trade and other receivables and ~ ZJBHRE B IERHTIR
deposits, net JREAE 2,409 3,617
Expenses relating to short-term lease B HARE Bz 316 809
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.
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. MAFZERB
2021 2020
—E-—% —ECTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FHT
Interest on: UTEREZHME
— Other borrowing —HEE - 10,113
— Lease liabilities —HE&aE 1,338 976
1,338 11,089
13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 13. EHFHM

Pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, the aggregate amounts of emoluments paid by
the companies now comprising the Group to the directors of

the Company during the reporting period are as follows:

REFELEHRURERQBFG > RAM
FEBZZFATNKREMEMNFTAE

QNEEEZHMBENT ¢

2021 2020

—E—F | ZEBEHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Fees HE 360 360
Other emoluments: Hhi < :

— Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind ~ —#& 2R BEYF 1,782 1,730

— Retirement scheme contributions —RIRET B R 36 42

— Share-based payment —URHBERZ AR 561 =

Total wast 2,739 2,132
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13. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS - continued 13. EEHM—4&
Details for the emoluments of each director of the Company AT ESNIRS B Z 5B BN
during the reporting period are as follows: T® <
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme  Share-based
Fees in kind  contributions payment Total
HdERR MR AE R
ik BWE  BREEIHR PAEA b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET THET
For the year ended 31 March 2021 HEZE--F
=ZB=+—-HLEE
Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Wang Jia Jun (Note (a)) Wang Jia JunZE 4 (Bt 3k (a)) - 1,032 18 264 1,314
Ms. Yung Ka Lai SEBRUL - 750 18 264 1,032
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHITEE:
Mr. Wong Hon Kit HEGEE 120 - - 1 131
Dr. Liu Yongping B THEL 120 - - 1" 131
Mr. Ho Man fgEE 120 - - 1 131
360 1,782 36 561 2,739
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme Share-based
Fees inkind  contributions payment Total
fe R R MU AER
itk BENMRE RS EIHED PANEN st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET TET FTET

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE-ZZ-ZF

ZA=+—HLEE

Executive directors: HiTEE !
Mr. Wang Jia Jun (Note (a)) Wang Jia Junfc 4 (FiizE(a)) = 770 18 = 788
Ms. Yung Ka Lai SEBRLT - 240 6 - 246
Mr. Chen Jinshan (Note (b)) B L% (EEDb) - 720 18 - 738
Independent non-executive directors:  BLIEHITEE .
Mr. Wong Hon Kit HEREE 120 - - - 120
Dr. Liu Yongping ABTHEL 120 - - - 120
Mr. Ho Man ks 120 - - - 120

360 1,730 42 - 2,132
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13.

164

.
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS - continued

Details for the emoluments of each director of the Company

during the reporting period are as follows: — continued
Notes:

(a)

Mr. Wang Jia Jun was appointed as executive director on 31
August 2018 and appointed as the chief executive officer of
the Company with effect from 1 April 2020.

Mr. Chen Jinshan resigned as the executive director of the
Company on 31 March 2020.

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, none of
the directors and chief executive officer of the Company

waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments have been paid to the directors and chief
executive officer of the Company as an inducement to join

or upon joining the Group or as compensation.

No bonus was paid or receivable by directors or five highest
paid employee after considering the Group's operational
and financial performance during the years ended 31 March
2021 and 2020.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 14. AR EEHES
The five highest paid individuals during the year included FRAEAEEHEEGERE (2T
two (2020: two) directors and the details of whose TF MR EF EMESHEBEHRNLEX
remuneration are set out in Note 13 above. The details of MEE13-BRTFT=% (ZT_F ! =4)
the emoluments of the remaining three (2020: three) highest RaiEE HELIIERARTEEIRIE
paid individuals who are neither director nor chief executive FETHAE) 2HMEFBUT :

officer of the Company are as follows:

2021 2020

“EZ 8 | ZEEHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Salaries and other emoluments e REMBNE 1,731 1,148

Retirement scheme contributions RONAEH) 51 8RR 36 32

Share-based payment UM AERZ R 28 =

1,795 1,180

The number of the highest paid employees who are not WIABERBESMEIHM A FIUATE
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the BzE=mHEEZA#BNT :

following band is as follows:

2021 2020

—FI—F | ZTBEHF

Nil to HK$1,000,000 0% 1,000,0007% 7T 3 3
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= 2020/21 gi& 165



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

w3 S 5 2R B

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE_ZE_—F=A=+—HILFE

14.

15.

166

il

-

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 14. AaBREHES &
- continued
During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, no HE_Z-_—FR-ZZEZZEHF=HR
emoluments were paid by the Group to senior management =E+—HUEFEE AERLERASHRE
or any of the five highest paid employees as an inducement BAESENAELREHEESE XM
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for B> e RSN AE B MER
loss of office. HYSZ RN > SN 1E 4 BE B 8 o
TAXATION 15. IR18
2021 2020
—E-—F —BEHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current tax: BERFRIE :
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax —FhEEMRER 1,050 308

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising or derived from the jurisdictions in which

members of the Group are domiciled and operated.

Provision on profits assessable elsewhere has been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations

and practices in respect thereof.
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15. TAXATION - continued

According to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, starting
from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding income tax will
be imposed on dividend relating to profits earned by the
companies established in the PRC in the calendar year
2008 onward to their foreign shareholders. For investors
incorporated in Hong Kong which hold at least 25% of
equity interest of those PRC companies, a preferential rate of
5% will be applied. The Group has applied the preferential
rate of 5% as the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are directly
held by an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong. No deferred tax has been provided for in respect
of the temporary differences attributable to such profits as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") CIT provision is made on
the estimated assessable profits of entities within the Group
incorporated in the PRC and is calculated in accordance
with the relevant regulations of the PRC after considering
the available tax benefits from refunds and allowances. The
general PRC CIT rate is 25% during the years ended 31
March 2021 and 2020 except for those as discussed below:

Pursuant to the “Notice on Implementation of Income Tax
Relief Policy for Small Low-profit Enterprises (Cai Shui 2019
No.13)" (TEAR B/ NMEXEESERUBAREKNBE
1 (B4#2201955135%)) jointly issued by the Ministry of
Finance and the State Administration of Taxation, during
the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021, the
portion of annual taxable income amount of a small low-
profit enterprise which does not exceed RMB 1,000,000 shall
be computed at a reduced rate of 25% as taxable income
amount for CIT calculation purpose, and shall be subject to
CIT at 20% tax rate; the portion of annual taxable income
amount which exceeds RMB1,000,000 but does not exceed
RMB3,000,000 shall be computed at a reduced rate of
50% as taxable income amount, and shall be subject to CIT
at 20% tax rate. Certain subsidiaries of the Group were
qualified for this policy and were entitled to the preferential
tax rate of 20% as mentioned above.

15. RIE—4&

REPEEEMRSREZ BZFTTN\E
—A—BE #RHEEFEXINAEE
“ER) \EEFERNNEN G HIE
SMRRBIIR S HUI0% N FENFAAFIR -
HREEBEMRIIBEREZSHEAR
B ED25%RENREE KB H5%H
BERX -ARFAEBEEFENMER
B —EEEBEMA IR EZER
AEEEFA BAEEEKSHHNEER
RGAIRIE - B A5 5 B F AE 7 S I8
EEREBRNER BAKRAERATR
iy 3R 5 (O] B R 2= BE > BRI SR L A% S s A
FEMG 2 R ZER (R IR AEAR TR B 5 o

REE SR (TREMIRL) B
BREBEDEARAUESHNERRR
RERKEER  REAEERFEGZ
0 Ak 32 B9 2 A8 B (& BT FE SR AR R A E W b
RECEERAREAE - BE-S - —
ER-_E_EF=-RA=+—HIEE"
—RAPBE T EASRMNESR25%  ET
X Pt bR

AR R B BB R B SRR 75 AR B £ [B] D 22
MEAREBE N MEEZEMHRBOR R
BRMEM ) (B#201958135%) R =
E—-hhF—B—HEZE-_—F+_H
=+—HLEBER NEMAEERE
FERMUKARER BB AR 1,000,000
TTHIER D > FER25% R AR TR K 5t A FE
RMBARE MEEMBRAEMS) »
WH20%MMEMMATEFRER 26
FERMUT A ZE B3 A K 11,000,0007C18
RiBiE AR %3,000,0007cRIEB 7 > FEIR
50%BRMME A ABRRUCAZE I
20%MMEBME XK - KAEH
ETHBAGMNMEZEREKR A Z%
Lit20% N BERZE
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15.

168

il

TAXATION - continued

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rate
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazette on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rate regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25% and
profits tax above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%. The directors considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rate as
insignificant to the consolidation financial statement. Hong
Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% for both years. No
provision for Hong Kong Profits tax has been made for both
years since there were no assessable profit generated in

Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin

Islands.
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MIE—&

ATE—NE=ZRB=Z+—H>&BFABILE
FEB(2017FERH (BE]) (FB75%) 1%
BIERE) (MRGIEZE]) > 5| AFFERR
EHBRE - FEHERZRR_E—N\FE=R
ZHNEHKEERALE ERKXA
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15 *ﬁlﬁ nE
RS A B Fe ELIY B /A 5] B B2 3t Bk 2 0%

15. TAXATION - continued

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to loss

before taxation using the statutory rate for the location in ERFAEBEARBRRAIGIEZARER
which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the AR ERREAE ZRERSIZH
tax expenses at the effective tax rate are as follows: BRANE ©
2021 2020
g% TECTE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
Loss before taxation FRITAIESIE (3,427) (20,559)
Notional tax on profit before tax, calculated ZPRIEMEREREZEREEH >
at the rates applicable to profits in the tax & FIAIE BN K+ E RN AT
jurisdiction concerned A Y 4 AR E 64 (3,599)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BHERRINANRBLE
purposes (80) (49)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AANRAZNREEE
tax purposes 3,756 2,938
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIEBNRIBRENRIE R 665 171
Tax effect of temporary difference not REDEEEENRBEE
recognised - 847
Effect of the preferential income tax rates HARABANBEEZEFRFEREN
for domestic entities e (3,135) =
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B A SCRI R FESR E’J%ﬁlﬁ
previously not recognised BENRBETE (220) -
Taxation IE 1,050 308

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$16,214,000 (2020: HK$16,744,000)
available for offset against future profits and amount of
HK$16,214,000 will fully expire in 2025. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the HK$16,214,000
(2020: HK$16,744,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. At the end of the reporting period, the
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
undistributed earnings of a subsidiary for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised was approximately
HK$3,925,000 (2020: HK$3,777,000). No deferred tax
liability has been recognised in respect of these differences
because the Group is in a position to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

REIREMAAR > ZEE16,214,0008 7T
(ZEZZHF 16,744,000 7T) 2K
BRRIEEIE A B EEHE R EF K
16,214,000 B TR __E_HE2H
EHA o A SR 2R im A 2R R 8 AR |l Al 0 i
WHEFL16,214,0008T (ZE_FF :
16,744,000/ 7T) MBIELERIBEE
REBREHER BRAMBRARARAEERF
MABRNEEREEENEREEE
4FELY 73,925,000 T (CEBF

3,777,000 7) cHRAEBBRENE
RO R = RE R MARERE
B A R 2R o] BE RS & 3 o] - M A T
ZEEERIIRIERIBE B

BEREEZERERAR
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16.

17.

170

.
DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company do not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021
(2020: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
(a) Basic loss per share
The calculation of the basic loss per share are based
on loss attributable to the owners of the Company and

the weighted average number ordinary shares in issue

-

16.

17.

Bz 2

ERBEFFERRAHE_ZT_—F
ZRA=+—HLEEENEARE (ZF

—sEm -

7y

oA AEESRESE

(a) wEirEBFEEE

TR BREFGEZEDRES
RNEER NEAGE B R ME TS
BETERERBBAE FEN

during the year as follows: s o
Loss for the year TEERE
2021 2020
—F—F | ZB22H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT THET
Loss for the year attributable to KATHEE ANEBEAFERE
owners of the Company (4,536) (20,744)
Number of shares ki B
2021 2020
Weighted average number of ordinary fI#EFHE@EREE (FisE)
shares (note) 560,222,136 210,029,767

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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17. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY - continued

(a)

Basic loss per share — continued

Number of shares

note:

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 March 2020 has been adjusted to reflect placing of
shares, share consolidation and rights issue. Detail of which
has been set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, the
computation of diluted loss per share does not include the
Company’s outstanding share options because the effect
were anti-dilutive. Therefore, the diluted loss per share of the
Company is the same as the basic loss per share.

17. ZAEEE AR ILERER
— 48

(a)

SRREFHEHE-&
RS EE

BysE

ERENAEBRE_Z_ZTF=A
Z+—HLEFEEZEREXRBFNMS
Z T EE R Y E MR BR AR 17 BC
E-ROEHRMER HFBEHINER
GBI RMEE28 -

BE_ZE-_—FRZZE-ZTEFE=H
=+—BHLEE SREEGEEZFTE
AEERBEFEMLESALQT
HWARTEZERE-ELL X TSR
BEEEEERELREIERAR-
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-
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

172

-

18. V¥ -BERKE

Leasehold Office Medicine Motor Construction
improvement equipment equipment vehicle in progress Total
HENERE MWAERE BRERE AE HEIR EH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TET TART TART
Cost %
As at 31 March 2019 RZE-hE=A=+-H 12,560 12,098 16,138 1,804 6,342 48,942
Additions hE 5,861 935 2,108 140 293 9,337
Disposals HE - (2,668) - (1,268) = (3,936)
Exchange realignment ERHE (1,185) (727) (1,118) (96) 1) (3,337)
As at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R-B-B&£=B=+-AkK
ZZ-TEMA-H 17,236 9,638 17,128 580 6,424 51,006
Additions HE 687 3,218 5,304 80 122 9,411
Disposals HE = = - 410) = (410)
Transfer an 3223 - - - (3,223) -
Exchange realignment ERAE 1763 927 2,141 76 274 5,181
As at 31 March 2021 RZE--%£=B=+-H 22,909 13,783 24,573 326 3,597 65,188
Accumulated depreciation Rt
As at 31 March 2019 RIE-NE=RA=1—H 1,145 7,861 5,788 1,276 - 16,070
Charge of the year FREMR 1,287 811 3,042 7 - 5,211
Written back on disposals REERER - (2,367) - (1,133) - (3,500)
Exchange realignment ERER (102) (456) (472) (64) - (1,094)
As at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 WRZBEZZ&=F=+-HkK
ZZ-TEMA-H 2,330 5,849 8,358 150 - 16,687
Charge for the year FRENB 2,615 690 3,776 99 - 7,180
Written back on disposals R E R - - - (279) = (279)
Exchange realignment ERHE 306 515 1,289 46 - 2,156
As at 31 March 2021 RZEZ-%=B=+-H 5,251 7,054 13,423 16 - 25,744
Net book value IREFE
As at 31 March 2021 RZE--%£=B=+-H 17,658 6,729 11,150 310 3,597 39,444
As at 31 March 2020 RZEZE£=A=+-H 14,906 3,789 8,770 430 6,424 34,319

WANJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Note: During the year ended 31 March 2021, as requested by the
owner and after negotiated and agreed by both parties, two
properties lease were in advance without compensation. As at
the date of termination, the carrying amount of right of use

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. ERHEEE
Leased
properties
HEME
HK$'000
TET
Cost EEZK
As at 1 April 2019 A ZE—NEMAE—H 17,664
Additions nNE 8,459
Exchange realignment PER A% (1,304)
As at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 ZEEE=A=t+—AK
—EEHFMA—H 24,819
Additions RE 296
Lease modification (Note) fAE & (M) (1,262)
Exchange realignment PE QA% 1,798
As at 31 March 2021 A ZE_—F=R=+—H 25,651
Accumulated depreciation RHetineE
As at 1 April 2019 R _E-hFEMA—H —
Charge provided for the year FEREEHEBINR 2,073
Exchange realignment PE R A% (56)
As at 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 ZEZEE=A=t+—AK
—_E_EHFMA—H 2,017
Charge provided for the year FREBESINR 3,067
Lease modification (Note) fHEEH (M) (317)
Exchange realignment BE 52 SR # 224
As at 31 March 2021 N _E_—F=H=+—H 4,991
Net book value RERE
As at 31 March 2021 R-_E-_—=H=+—H 20,660
As at 31 March 2020 R _E_EHF=H=+—H 22,802

Mz : BE_E_—F=A=+—HLHF
E EBEIFER KELHHREE:
WMENEBEERA KL BFEM
ME- N EAREERA

assets and lease liabilities were approximately HK$945,000
and HK$969,000 respectively and the gain on lease
modification of approximately HK$24,000 was recognised in
profit or loss during the year.

ERRZIREESD R A#945,000%
765 969,000% 75 > M EE XM= 4
24,0008 7T EA N Hm P E o
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19.

174

il

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS - continued

Lease liabilities of approximately HK$22,124,000
(2020:HK$23,531,000) are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of approximately HK$20,660,000
(2020:HK$22,802,000) as at 31 March 2021. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for

borrowing purposes.

Details of total cash outflow of leases for the year ended 31
March 2021 is set out in the consolidated statement of cash

flows.

During the current year, the Group leases properties for its
operations. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of
the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the

contract is enforceable.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21
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A —_E_—F=HA=+—H ®BRH
EAE#H22,124,0008 T (ZE2F
£ 123,531,000 7o) K 1A BE 1 A 1
BE#20,660,0008 T (ZTEZFF .
22,802,000 7T) - HE #HHEPR LA AR
ENEEEERNIERER I REME
A2 - HEEEFSAEBRIER

BE_T_—F-A=+—HLEFEZ
HERERNBEFFHIINGERE

mExRe

REFEE AEEBAEMENETERE
B HEMRMLIRERNEERZR FTH
ERRIEHEERAEAEERBER-BE
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20. GOODWILL 20. &
2021 2020
—E-—5F —EEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FAET
Cost (5%
As at 1 April REBE—H 907,336 915,844
Exchange realignment BE R R B 10,281 (8,508)
As at 31 March R=B=+—H 917,617 907,336
Accumulated impairment losses Rt ERE
As at 1 April ROEB—H 818,326 820,636
Exchange realignment BE 2 eH B 2,791 (2,310)
As at 31 March BR=B=+—H 821,117 818,326
Carrying amounts EREE
As at 31 March WR=B=+—H 96,500 89,010

BEREEZERERAR 175
202021 3R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
or o BE 55 i 3R Y 5 >

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE_ZE_—F=A=+—HILFE

20.

176

il

GOODWILL - continued 20.

The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment loss) as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 are

BE—- &

RS- R _E_FEF=H=+—
H @& ZREE 0RRFRESE)

allocated as follows: PEWMT :

2021 2020
—g-—F ZEIEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TET

Mingxi County Trading Company Limited BHZBREEEZERRE

("Mingxi”) and its subsidiaries (TERZ)) REKB AT

— provision of hemodialysis treatment and ~ —3iZ MK B ABEK
consultancy services B ARTS 96,500 89,010

Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill

The recoverable amounts of the CGU were determined by
the directors with the reference to professional valuation
report issued by Asset Appraisal Limited, independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers which were based on value in

use calculations.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21
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20. GOODWILL - continued

Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill

- continued

In addition to goodwill above, property, plant and equipment
(including allocation of corporate assets) and right-of-
use assets (including allocation of corporate assets) that
generate cash flows together with the related goodwill
are also included in the respective CGU for the purpose of

impairment assessment.

The recoverable amount of this unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses
cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by management covering a 5-year period (2020: 5-year),
and pre-tax discount rate of 11.76% (2020: 10.37%). The
cash flows beyond the 5-year period (2019: 5-year) are
extrapolated using a zero-growth rate (2019: zero%). This
growth rate is based on a very prudence forecasts and
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the

relevant industry.

Other key assumptions for the value in use calculations relate
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
average gross margin of 57.5% (2020: 60.5%) and the
average net profit margin of 14.9% (2020: 15.0%), such
estimation is based on the CGU’s past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development.
In the coming year, the Group is going to open two self-
operated hemodialysis treatment centres in the Guangdong
Province, PRC. Base on the past performance of other
self-operated hemodialysis treatment centres, we assume
the two centres will be achieved a full-scale operation
in 2024 and will likely to increase the CGU's revenue by

approximately 1.4% in the coming year.

2 0 ﬁ = nlE

SEHEZREELEARERNS
— &

RLmmEZN EEREREZY
X BERZE (BRECEXEBEESER) &
FREEE (BRECEBEEDR) &R
MHEEE N ASEREEEE M U
BEETRET (o

Bz A ElI & EREEREESE
FABE ZtEFEAEARESER
BMZAFEHE CESF  2H) 2
MBEEAEZREREBA KR AR
RE11.76% (ZTZZFF 110.37%) #
THE-REFHE CE—AE 1H)
BENRETERASHERERE (ZTZT—AN
FEEEX) HE LI REDIRBE
HEENEAEE BT EBBEMITE
ZRIBFHERE.

HEHEAEENEMETERSERER
A/ RENEE AR SIFETHEER X
57.5% (ZZEZZHF 1 60.5%) KFHF
FIEZFE14.9% (ZZZFHF :115.0%) > M
BERESDERESESBEUNBERR
REBEHTHEENTEHMEE XK
FoAERRNPEERESHZMES
EMRENEGEPL - EREMBEM
RENARFOLZBERRE  HMERR
EREROCRES_NFER2EE
ERAEFNREESHEELEMNK
B NA1.4% ©
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20.

21.

178

GOODWILL - continued

Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill

- continued

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the recoverable
amount of the CGU was approximately HK$177,307,000
(2020: HK$155,235,000) with the available headroom
of amount HK$13,281,202 (2020: HK$10,096,000) and
the management of the Group determines that there is
no impairment on CGU. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the carrying amount of CGU to exceed the

recoverable amount of CGU.

INVENTORIES

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial

position comprise:

-

20.

21.

BE—- &
SEHEZHREEEEMRERNR
—48

BHE_Z_—F=HA=t+—HLt
FEE - HEELXBEUzZOKOEO£EHE
#%5177,307,0008C (ZE_F
£ :155,235,000%&75) > o] HEREE
13,281, 2028 (ZE 25 F .
10,096,000 7T) RAEBEEEET
REELBENTEHRARE - EEER
A EAZERIJHREMSIE S
A EERREEFEUZREES
BREELEMNZJKREEEE

=8
RESHBRARZ FEESE

2021 2020
—E-—5 —E_TE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FAET

Finished goods Bk am 9,587 7,435

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 22. BRREMBWRERRE

DEPOSITS

2021 2020
—E-—F —TEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Non-current assets: EREBEE !
Deposits paid for property, plant and ME- -BERZBEN
equipment (note (a)) #& (Misx@) 471 1,439

Current assets: MENEEE -

Trade receivables B S EWEIE 24,771 18,414

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses  ifl : B R EWRIEZ

on trade receivables THHAE EEGIREE (9,835) (7,842)
14,936 10,572
Prepayments Fa{IFRIE 1,803 2,459
Other receivables and deposits paid HtEWHRIEREMES
(note (b)) (Ff5E (b)) 22,190 20,550
38,929 33,581
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses 8 : HfthEEWRIBZ FEHAEE
on other receivables ke di] (7,103) (6,687)
31,826 26,894
note: BzE :

(@) The balance represent deposits paid for machinery and (@) HHIEMEREHNASHABRS
equipment for provision of hemodialysis treatment and HETSM LSS RS S o
consultancy services.

(b) Included in the Group's deposits paid were the refundable by HXEBZzEHRESBEALEANSE
security deposit to Zhuhai Jinlong Hospital Company BlEERAS SN AEERES
Limited, for the operation and management of the #912,025,0008 7T GAERL AR
hemodialysis centre in the hospital for a term of 10 years of 11,000,0005T) * U EREEZE R
approximately HK$12,025,000 (equivalent to approximately B IR EN R BEI0E-EHEZR
RMB11,000,000). For more details, please refer to the HE, ERF AN ARAE_ZE_=HF
Company’s announcement date 13 March 2020. =A+=HZAfo

BEREEZERERAR 179
202021 3R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
or o BE 55 i 3R Y 5

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE_ZE_—F=A=+—HILFE

22.

180

.
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
DEPOSITS - continued

Payment terms with customers from the pharmaceutical
wholesale and distribution business, and hemodialysis
treatment and consultancy service business are mainly on
credit. Invoices are normally payable from 30 to 90 days
(2020: 30 to 90 days) for pharmaceutical wholesale and
distribution business and 5 to 365 days (2020: 5 to 365
days) for hemodialysis treatment and consultancy service
business respectively of issuance of invoices. The ageing
analysis of the gross amount of trade receivables based on

the invoices date is as follows:

-

22.

BaRHEHMEWFRIERES
—&

] 8% G #it 3% T 9 8 U K IR B AT A
B R BHAREERE P REN RGN
NEEARAET BE—REDNNEESR
HHAZ30EIOH (Z2EZZHF 1 308
90R) (ZEm#ttEE Kk #HERE) K5E365H
(ZE-F4F :5%3650) (IRERAE
BREHARFBEER) AR REZEAH
M E 5 R IEEERN R DT ©

2021 2020
—E-—% TECTE

HK$"000 HK$'000

FAT FHET

Within 90 days 90H A 13,340 10,523
91-180 days 91E180H 1,888 2,465
181-365 days 181E365H 3,245 1,818
Over 365 days #BiE365H 6,298 3,608
24,771 18,414

Details impairment assessment of trade and other receivables

and deposits are set out in Note 5(b).

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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23. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, all of which

are limited liability companies, at 31 March 2021 are as

A= —

R —_—,<—

T

23. BATRZ#1E
—#ZAZ+—B AATZ

—F=A=1+—HILFE

TEMBAR IAHBARQE) FEW

follows: T
Particulars of
Place and date of issued and fully
Incorporation paid ordinary Percentage of equity, effective
Name of registration Class of share capital/ interest and voting power held
subsidiaries and operation share held registered capital by the Company Principal activities
EEFRYR
ERALE fits #iahis,/ R
WEAR4HE EEBHREN iR ARETZHE FARREZRE EREGRRZEZ LA TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# 3
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZEC-f| ZBIEE| ZEC-%| ZB2%E
% % % %

Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao The PRC/ Registered RMB71,500,000 - = 99.0 99.0 Pharmaceutical wholesale and
Pharmaceutical Company Limited 9 July 2008 distribution business in the
("Fuzhou Huihao") ** PRC

BRAGMMRAEEERAR HE/ BalEE AR%71,500,0007 RAEETERYEER
(M E) “EZ)\EtARH NHEEB

Putian Huihao Medicine Company Limited The PRC/ Registered RMB10,000,000 - - 99.0 99.0 Pharmaceutical wholesale and
("Putian Huihao") ** 11 July 2008 distribution business in the

PRC

REEREFREERAT HE/ BaEE AR %10,000,0007 RAEETERYEER
(EmEF) " —FE\FtA+-A NHEEB

Lianan Kidney Medical Management Company The PRC/ Registered RMB20,000,000 - = 99.0 99.0  Hemodialysis treatment and
Limited ** 15 June 2012 consultancy service business

in the PRC

HZBBREEERAT HE/ ARER AE%20,000,0007 KRBT NRET AR

—B-"F57A1ER RfAREEH

Putian lianan Kidney Medical Management The PRC/ Registered RMBS5,000,000 - = 99.0 99.0  Hemodialysis treatment and
Company Limited®" 8 November 2016 consultancy service business

in the PRC

EERZBNBAEEERAT HE/ ARER AR %5,000,00078 RREETNRETAR

ZE-E+-ANH REAREEH

Wuhua Yongke Kidney Hemodialysis Company The PRC/ Registered RMB3,000,000 - - 99.0 99.0  Hemodialysis treatment and
Limited*" 28 November 2016 consultancy service business

in the PRC

LERYBMORENERAT" HE/ ARER AR 3,000,000 BT NRET AR

—E-nE KRB LR
+-AZ+/A

Yangchun City Yanghe Kidney Hemodialysis The PRC/ Registered RMB6,000,000 - - 99.0 99.0  Hemodialysis treatment and
Company limited® consultancy service business

in the PRC

BETRABMNRERERA" HE/ ZREE 16,000,007 REETRENAR

REARBER
# The English names of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC : TRBRPEMEREZEXHES
are transliteration of their respective Chinese names which AREEEPXLBZEEMIL E|E
have not been registered. it o
*

* These entities are wholly foreign owned enterprises

established in the PRC.

PRC.

These entities are limited liability company established in the

ZEBRSNPEMIININERSE-

ZEERANPERINERAF -

BEREEZERERAR
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24,

182

-

.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. RE RS ZEHIAEH
2021 2020
—E-—% —ECTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FET
Cash and cash equivalents HEkFEEEEER 25,099 24,801

At as 31 March 2021, the cash at banks and cash on hand of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$24,874,000 (2020: approximately HK$22,739,000).
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on the
prevailing market rate. The cash and cash equivalents are
deposits with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
but conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject
to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorisation to

conduct foreign exchange business.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 2 —E_—F=H=+—RLFE

25. E 5 REMEMRIE

2021 2020
—SI-F | ZTB2HF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Trade payables B EARE 8,428 8,234
Accruals and other payables (note a) FEst& A R EMES RIS (Mista) 12,014 14,660
Contract liabilities (note b) B aE (MEtb) 390 220
20,832 23,114

note: B EE -
(@) Included in accruals and other payables mainly represented () EERREMECHREZTZGER

other tax payables of approximately HK$362,000 (2020:
HK$194,000), construction payables of approximately HK$Nil
(2020: HK$3,355,000) and amount due to a connected
person who is the brother of Yung Ka Lai of approximately
HK$6,200,000 (2020: HK$5,200,000) which is unsecured,

interest free and repayable on demand.

HhFE( IR IE49362,0008 T (2=
£F 1 194,000%7T) ENEERENT
BT (ZTTTZ 4 © 3,355,000 7T) K
Eff—2AEAL (MEEEZRE)
Z RIEX6,200,0008 7T (ZE_B4F ©
5,200,000 7T) > AEIEH - REKRE
BREREE

Contract liabilities (b) EHEE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEIRHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFHET FHET
Contract liabilities relating to receipt in EATE U H & FI pE B AR FE A R HY
advance of sales of finished goods or aHaE
services 390 220
BEREEZERARAR 183
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el

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
— continued

note: — continued

(b)

Contract liabilities — continued

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

Generally, the Group receives a lump sum amount of sales
of finished goods in advance for a specified range of time
from customers when they sign the contract. This lump
sum amount received is recognised as a contract liability
initially and to be recognised as revenue when performances
obligation are satisfied. The contract liabilities would be

recognised as revenue within one year.

The Group considers the advance payments schemes does
not contain significant financing component and accordingly
the amount of consideration is not adjusted for the effects
of the time value of money taking into consideration that the
payment terms were not structured primarily for the provision
of finance to the Group.

25. B REMEMARE-&

i A

(b)

aNaE—&

TEMRIANGHNEEESREN—KRM
TARRRE T ¢

BE AEEETEREITANEEES
ERNEEEANEL —RMEKRR—FH
& RS Z TRIE o R E) Z E IR & A
WEDSENERLEERRNEE
By st et c SN B AR —FE R
B o

FEERBEMNREFELFEAES
RRE BB 2D > T B LA 51 Rz A9 R A6 7R
FETERMAEBEHERREMTIL
BRBELRAECERFBHEENZEM
Ao

N =l -d -1
Movement in contract liabilities: ANARZEE:
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEIEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 April REBE—H 220 1,197
Revenue recognised that was included SFAFENENEBERZ
in the contract liabilities balance at By
beginning of the year (220) (1,197)
Consideration received BURE 390 220
At 31 March W=B=+—H 390 220
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25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. B R H B RIE— 48
- continued
The ageing analysis of trade payables of the Group AEEZEZHHMEINNE ZEAR
presented based on the invoice date is as follows: IHAVEREC DTN E ¢
2021 2020
—SI-F | ZTB2HF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAT FHET
Within 90 days 90H AR 3,218 1,744
91 — 180 days 91&180H 556 802
181 — 365 days 181E365H 499 177
Over 365 days #8iB365H 4,155 5,511
8,428 8,234
The average credit period on purchases of certain goods in BEETERZTHAGEEHNF30E0
range from 30 to 90 days (2020: 30 to 90 days). H(CZEZ-Z4 :30F90R) zf-
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26. LEASE LIABILITIES

-
26. fHE&E

2021 2020
g% TECTE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT THET
Lease liabilities payable: FEHHEaE:
Within one year —FRA 2,528 2,640
Within a period of more than one year —FE L EREANIAME
but not exceeding two years 2,360 2,699
Within a period of more than two years ME LB R FEANARM
but not later than five years 4,710 5,060
Within a period of more than five years AFE EHAR 12,526 13,132
22,124 23,531
Less: Amount due for settlement within R TZEAREIEEEZ
12 months shown under current liabilities ~ £%8 (MRS & FEIE T HIT) (2,528) (2,640)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months MR+ _{EB &R EIHFE LB
shown under non-current liabilities (RIERBERB/IETFIIR) 19,596 20,891

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to

lease liabilities range from 4.63% to 7.50% (2020: 4.63% NFR4.63
4.63%%6.80%) °

to 6.80%).
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27. AMOUNT DUE TO DIRECTORS/AMOUNT

28.

DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER

Amount due to directors and amount due to a shareholder

are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

27.

ENEERIEEHE—HRR

IR

BNEEREREN —LRRREDE

B -REBERAREREE

SHARE CAPITAL 28. Bg7s
Nominal
value of
Number of ordinary
shares shares
gaEkz
K& B REE
HK$'000
THET
Authorised: EE
At 1 April 2019 ordinary share A ZE-NENA—HEK
of HK$0.01 per share EHE0.01B Tz EiBER 2,000,000,000 20,000
Share consolidation (note ii) &1 & B (Fd i) (1,600,000,000) =
Increase authorised ordinary share of & IN&E R EE0.058 T2
HK$0.05 per share (note ii) EE LB (ki) 600,000,000 30,000
At 31 March 2020, 1 April 2020 and RZZ-ZT&H£=H=+—H"
31 March 2021 ordinary share of —EEFMNA—HBRZE
HK$0.05 per share “—F=H=+—H8K
EE0.05B Tz &ER 10,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTREE :
At 1 April 2019 A ZE—NEMA—H 778,086,300 7,781
Issue of new shares of HK$0.01 BITEREE0.01 BT ZHMIRG
per share (note i) (Pfd&Ei) 155,617,260 1,556
Share consolidation (note ii) B h & B (Mdstii) (746,962,848) =
Rights issue of HK$0.05 per share FREE0.05BT 2 HA&
(note iii) (Bfd 5Eiii ) 373,481,424 18,674
At 31 March 2020, 1 April 2020 and AZE-EFE=HA=+—H"
31 March 2021 —ECEFMA—HR-E
—_—f#=H=+—H 560,222,136 28,011

BEREEZERERAR 187
202021 3R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
or o BE 55 i 3R Y 5

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE_ZE_—F=A=+—HILFE

el

28. SHARE CAPITAL - continued

188

note:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

On 23 August 2019, the Company and the placing agent
(“Placing Agent”) entered into the placing agreement
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed
to place through the Placing Agent to 155,617,260 placing
shares and whose ultimate beneficial owners shall be
Independent Third Parties at a price of HK$0.054 per placing
share. The gross proceeds from the placing was approximately
HK$8,403,000 and the net proceeds was approximately
HK$7,956,000. The placing was completed on 12 September
2019.

On 6 December 2019, the Company announced a proposed
that every five existing shares of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company be consolidated into one consolidated
share (“Consolidated Share”) of HK$0.05 each in the share
capital of the Company (the “Share Consolidation”) and
increase in authorised share capital from HK$20,000,000
divided into 400,000,000 Consolidated Shares to
HK$50,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 Consolidated
Shares by creating an additional 600,000,000 unissued
Consolidated Shares. Upon the Share Consolidation and the
increase in authorised share capital becoming effective by
shareholders’ resolution passed at an extraordinary general
meeting on 16 January 2020, the authorised share capital
of the Company became HK$50,000,000 divided into
1,000,000,000 Consolidated Shares of par value of HK$0.05
each, and the number of shares in issue became 186,740,712
which became effective on 20 January 2020.

On 6 December 2019, the Company announced a proposed
rights issue on the basis of two rights shares for every
one Consolidated Share in issue at a subscription price
of HK$0.192 per rights share (the “Rights Issue”). The
gross proceeds from Rights Issue were approximately
HK$71,708,000 and the net proceeds from the Rights
Issue after deducting related expenses were approximately
HK$68,396,000. Upon completion of the Rights Issue on 24
February 2020, the number of issued share capital of the
Company was increased by 373,481,424.
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MisE :

(i)

(i)

(iii)

A-E—NENAZ+=HE2F
BFENRE ((RENREL TR ER
ORI ARBEERHERESEE
REEREERSREERHN0.054EF T
2 EWRERE155,617,260RFCE R
RN ERRERHEEANEABILE=
J5 o BL & PR S R IB 4R 23R4V 48,403,000
BT RFSRIEFEEL 27,956,000
BT -REBR_Z—hEFELB+=
H5Em °

AZE—NE+ZANRNB EQAFAE
i BB EAARAREARERARESKE
BO.0OIBTZRERNEHALAT
BAP—KREREEOSEBTZAEH
B3 (T&HERM) (TR &) K&
1B 1% 5 2EIN600,000,00008 R 21T &
B& 1% % A E & 24s BH20,000,000% 7T (9
#£#2400,000,0000% & A& 12) N E
50,000,0007% 7T (43 #%%51,000,000,000
REHRD) cRIRMPEHEEERE
BMEBRENR_S_ZTF—H+,~
BERREINAG LEBRERZLEN
B> RATZEERZAE%50,000,000
BT (D #F241,000,000,0008% 5 Z HE &
0.05BTZaHIRM) REZXTRHE
BH&%186,740,712KR (RZE-TF—
BAZ+BHER) -

AZE—NE+ZANRNBERQAFAE
i BERSRHE—REHRORER
HAZAR150. 1928 T2 B EE MR
R M 2 B EETHER (THER)) °
AR Z RS TRIEAEEE A 4971,708,000
BARERZZFAFEREFELEDN
68,396,000 7t (RINPFAERMAZE)
REBRR-ZE-ZEF A"+ HMARE
RE > ANATZBEETRAEE LM
373,481,424B%
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RESERVES 29. {#E
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements RERBE_S_—FRIZIEF=
therein for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 are B=t+—BHLEEZR#ERHEHEHNEEH
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity EINEEMBRRZEEESED
of the consolidated financial statements. *o
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 30. ZAFMBIRRRR
THE COMPANY
2021 2020
—EZ—%f —ECEF
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Non-current assets ERBMEE
Investment in subsidiaries RBABZKRE 6,484 6,484
Right-of-use assets EREEE 1,947 2,962
Property, plant and equipment W2~ BB e 5% 875 10
9,306 9,456
Current assets RENE E
Other receivables and deposits HMEWERIE g & 572 1,618
Amount due from subsidiaries FE U Bf B8 2 B =R IE - 675
Cash and cash equivalents He KRB+ EEER 103 2,006
675 4,299
Current liabilities RENEE
Accruals and other payables FEST & A R E A FES I 8,913 9,438
Lease liabilities HEaR 1,067 1,064
Amount due to subsidiaries FE{T B B A Bl =R 1B - 6,874
Amount due to directors Bt EE=R1E 7,050 1,200
Amount due to a shareholder FE{S—% IR FRIE 1,200 =
18,230 18,576
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

190

THE COMPANY - continued

»

30. ZABMBRRER—E

2021 2020

g% TECTE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Net current liabilities BB EFEE (17,555) (14,277)

Total assets less current liabilities BEHAERTEBEE (8,249) (4,821)
Non-current liabilities JEREBIEE

Lease liabilities HEaR 927 1,994

927 1,994

Net liabilities BEFEE (9,176) (6,815)
Capital and reserves B R #E

Share capital B& 7 28,011 28,011

Reserves (Note 31) fEfE (MfIsE31) (37,187) (34,826)

Total equity KB (9,176) (6,815)

The financial statement was approved and authorised for

issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2021 and signed

on its behalf by:

Wang Jia Jun

Executive Director
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Executive Director
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31. "R EE#E

Share Share option Accumulated
reserve reserve losses Total
R {3 (k6 ERERE 2itEE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
As at 1 April 2019 RZZE—-hEMNB—H 4177 3,944 (81,237) (73,116)
Loss for the year FEEBR - - (17,832) (17,832)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEZ B - = (17,832) (17,832)
Placing of ordinary shares FEEEBRM 6,847 - - 6,847
Transaction costs attributable REEERELERZMA
to placing of ordinary shares (447) - - (447)
Issue of rights issue TR 53,034 - - 53,034
Transaction costs attributable IR R 2 A
to rights issue (3,312) - - (3,312)
As at 31 March 2020 and RIEZZE=A=1+—H
1 April 2020 R-ZE_ZFENMH—H 60,299 3,944 (99,069) (34,826)
Loss for the year REERE = = (4,088) (4,088)
Total comprehensive loss for the year EEZHEE B - - (4,088) (4,088)
Share-based payment (Note 33) MR AERZ 4R
(M¥33) - 1,727 - 1,727
As at 31 March 2021 RZBZ—£=HA=+—H 60,299 5,671 (103,157) (37,187)
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32.

192

.
RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates as Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, this

contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC are members of state-managed retirement
benefits schemes operated by the local government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the retirement benefits to fund the
benefits. The only obligations of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefits schemes are to make the specified

contributions.

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 24 September 2013, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) whereby the
Board can grant options for the subscription of our shares
to the employees, managerial staff and senior employees
and those other persons that the Board considers that
they will contribute or have contributed to the Group (the
“Participants”) as described in the Share Option Scheme
in order to serve as compliment and to reciprocate their
contribution to the Group. The maximum number of shares
that can be issued according to the Share Option Scheme
was 56,022,213 shares, which is equivalent to 10% of
the issued capital of the Company. The number of options
that may be granted pursuant to the terms of the Share
Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued shares
immediately after the completion of the Listing. Unless
otherwise approved by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting, the number of shares that may be granted
to a Participant under the options shall not exceed 1%
within any 12-month period (other than those granted to
the substantial shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or the independent non-executive Directors
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules)), or the total number of shares that may be granted
under the options to the substantial shareholders of the
Company or the independent non-executive Directors or any
of their respective associates shall not exceed 0.1% of the
shares in issue of the Company from time to time. There is
no minimum period that the options must be held before
they become exercisable, and the options granted shall be
exercised within the period decided by the Board; however,
no options shall be exercised 10 years after they have been
granted. The exercise price of the option shall be the higher
of (a) the closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the
average closing price of the shares on the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) nominal
value of the share. Each grantee shall pay a consideration of
HK$1.00 at the time the option is granted. The Share Option
Scheme shall take effect from the date it is adopted and
shall remain effective within a period of 10 years from that
date.

33. BERgEETR

RIZB-—ZFAA-+HNB > EARFHK
MRS 8 (TRERRESTE)) - &
t-EFETREE -EEAEBRBR
BEUKRBRESEMAEEGIR
NEHNBEHAEBFHEMBOZ
ﬁﬁf’m)\:t(r/,\}\ij)?*tﬂﬁ%ﬂﬂ%’
MUEBBRMAORM MR SR TR
BRkOHERENSEBRFHNERM R
BREREAIUTETHRSROVBES
56,022,213 KM EERETATE#
TRANZ10% ° 1R #5 B8 AR #E 5 B AR =R AT
RENBEREHEFISEEEBTR L
TRAEABDEHITRMEI10% FRIFAE
ABRRREBRRAESTHE TAA
REBRERTF2EALNRMBEERN
ER12EBHMERARFEB1% (AEAQ
BEEKRR (EER LHRA) H\ILIF
HITEFHARSZTEZHMEAL (EE
REMWRA) RHEBRID) > RIRBEER
BARTAABEERRIIGILIFANIT
EFURFZENEABBEALHRS
MELRBBEIRTNFFKEHITRH
0.1% BIEREMKRETITEAMARTH
MREME MRHNBREARES
ERENBBEATE EREEBERER
REREEBRBEI10FEBITE -BRETE
BAAGQRMINEREBHREMIFEHE
WERLAIIBWSE ;(b)RMD N ERE
REBMAAEXZEBEBXAESHER
BREFRIIBNTHERHE ; RORME
HEZERSE SBRRAARERBER
BZRZ1.008 T 2B - Bk
BRNERMEREN EEZBAES0
FHRAMABR
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33.

194

.
SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

As at 31 March 2021, the number of shares in respect of
which share options had been granted but not exercised
under the Share Option Scheme was 31,773,892 (2020:
13,103,892) shares (after-adjustment of share consolidation
and the rights issue), representing approximately 5.67%
(2020: 2.34%) of the shares of the Company in issue at
that date. Under Rule 17.04(1) of the Listing Rules and the
provision of the Share Option Scheme, each grant of Options
to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or any of their respective associates, must be

approved by the independent non-executive directors.

The following table discloses details and the movements
of the Company’s share options held by directors and
employees during the years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020:

-

33. FARRESTEI— 1R

ATE-_—F=ZHA=1+—H REBR
MR ITEZERES R 2B
e E%&31,773,82K (ZE_24F :
13,103,892[%) (K11 & B R AR
#B)  EEATRZAZERITRHY
5.67% (ZTZTH 12.34%) o RIK L
MR A5 17.04(1) 1% e B8 B 1 5t 8 2 1%
XOBREBELHEREFTAATDNESE R
BITBRAEBRTIERRIARESEZME
B ANBESBEILIERTESH -

BE-_ZT_-_—FR-FT-_ZTF=HA
=+—HLEEE - EEZREEFAER
BIBREZFBEREFN TRIKE !

Exercise Balance Granted Exercised Balance
price for outstanding at during during outstanding at
Grant date Validity period one share 1 April 2020 the year the year 31 March 2021
33 AZBI-F
—kik#Hiz  BA-AZ . EEE'I':EI?
REAS AR T HARESR RERRY RERTE HARESR
HK$
BT
Directors 26 October 2018 26 October 2018- 0.668 1,414,670 - - 1,414,670
B 26 October 2028 (note a)
Z2-\E+AZ+RH 2 \E+AZ+RHE (GEZ)
ZE\E+AZHH
24 April 2020 24 April 2020- 0.190 - 5,300,000 - 5,300,000
24 April 2030
ZE2CZEMAZtMA —E2_2EMAC+MAE
ZZ-ZEMAC+MEA
Total
i 1,414,670 5,300,000 - 6,714,670
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- e — —
33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued 33. BBRRHEs 8 —4H
Exercise Balance Granted Exercised Balance
price for outstanding at during during outstanding at
Grant date Validity period one share 1 April 2020 the year the year 31 March 2021
RZEZSE RZEZ-£
—RfRZ MB—HZ =B=+-Hz
=L gt ﬁfﬂ% HABEGR  REAEH RERTE HARESR
HK
BT
Employees 26 October 2018 26 October 2018~ 0.668 11,689,222 - - 11,689,222
] 26 October 2028 (note a)
“E-\E+AZ+RH “Z-\F+AZt/HE (GEZ)
B N\E+AZ+RHE
24 April 2020 24 April 2020~ 0.190 - 10,640,000 - 10,640,000
24 April 2030
“Z2ZEMAZTMH “ZZEMAZTMAEE
ZEZ=ZEMAZTMEA
24 April 2020 24 April 2021- 0.190 - 1,170,000 - 1,170,000
24 April 2030
“Z2ZEMAZTMH “E_-FMAZtWMEE
ZZ=ZEMACTMEA
24 April 2020 24 April 2022-
24 April 2030 0.190 = 1,560,000 = 1,560,000
“Z2ZEMAZTMH “E_"FMAZTMEE

—E2ZFEMAC+IA

Total
st 11,689,222 13,370,000 - 25,059,222

Grand total
A 13,103,892 18,670,000 - 31,773,892
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

33. FARRESTEI— 1R

Exercise Balance Granted Exercised Adjustment Adjustment Balance
price for ~ outstanding at during during for share for rights outstanding at
Grant date Validity period one share 1 April 2019 the year theyear  consolidation issue Reallocation 31 March 2020
(note b)
RZE-hE |t Jat 3
—#irz MA-AZ iRAAaM N EN7E =ZB=t-AZ
RiHEH gt R HARESH REREH RERTHE feitiA% fritiBE (Mith)  WARESH
HKS
An
Directors 26 October 2018 26 October 2018- 0.668 13,400,000 = = (10,720,000) 28,083 (1,203,413) 1,414,670
26 October 2028 (note a)
£ 23-\E Z2-)\5+H (If3ta)
+AZt7H “iEE
ZZ_)\%£+A
1758
Total
@t 13,400,000 - - (10,720,000) 28,083 (1,293413) 1,414,670
Employees 26 October 2018 26 October 2018~ 0.668
26 October 2028 (note a) 51,440,000 - - (41,152,000) 107,809 1,293,413 11,689,222
&8 Z3-)\E Z2-)\f1H (W3ta)
+BZ+RH ZtREE
ZZ_)\%£+A
175
Total 51,440,000 - - (41,152,000) 107,809 1,293,413 11,689,222
@i
Grand total 64,840,000 - - (51,872,000) 135,892 - 13,103,892
ait
note: P 5E
(@)  The exercise price of share options granted in prior year was @ RE-—FERHZBREZTEBER
adjusted to HK$0.668 following the share consolidation on 20 —FEFE—RtHHZROBEHEK
January 2020 and the rights issue on 24 February 2020. —ECEF_AZtMAZHKRES
EE0.6688TT
(b)  The reallocation of the number of 1,293,413 share option (b) 1,293,413 BREBEEEMDEE

from director to employee due to Mr. Chen Jinshan resigned

as executive director of the Company on 31 March 2020.
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued

Share options granted on 26 October 2018
(“Share Option 1")

The fair value of Share Option 1 determined using the
Binomial model was approximately HK$3,944,000. The
significant inputs into the model were share price of
HK$0.119 at the grant date, exercise price shown above,
expected volatility rate of 62.873%), annual risk free interest
rate of 2.36% and dividend payout ratio of Nil. The volatility
measured at the standard deviation of expected share price
returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices
from 26 October 2013 to 26 October 2018.

All of the Share Options 1 were immediately vested from the

date of granted.

During the year ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, no share-
based payment expense was charged to the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

Share options granted on 24 April 2020 (“Share
Option 2")

The fair value of Share Option 2 determined using the
Binomial model was approximately HK$1,864,000. The
significant inputs into the model were share price of
HK$0.190 at the grant date, exercise price shown above,
expected volatility of 58.779%, annual risk free interest rate
of 0.51% and dividend payout ratio of Nil. The volatility
measured at the standard deviation of expected share price
returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices
from 24 April 2015 to 24 April 2020.

33.

AERetEstE — 48
RZE—N\F+BAZ+BIEHH
RERGHE (THERRHE 1)
FA_EARAEECERE1QAFTEY
#3,944,0008 T  ZEANEEHAE
KA E Y HEARE0. 1198 T~ LialfT
1S~ FEHA BN K62.873% ~ EEE AR
FIE236%REREX - REHKRER
BNBREREMTEARIE THIRIEH
2 =F+AZ+AHEEZZ—N
E+AZ+NBENESHRENFKT DN
STERSEH-

FRERRE I BREBHAEE LRS-

BE_E_— k- ZE"_ZTF=H
=t+—HEFE @IBEURGAERZ
AR e AGEIEERA

R-E_EFMNA-+MAEREN
FERR#E (TRERR#2.)
RAZEAEXNEETZEBRE2ATE
#9731,864,0008 e ZIERNEEH A
BERAREHBARE.1908 T Litt
17168~ FEHAKRIE58.779% ~ F E & E b
MEOS1%RBIRER - RFEHHKERD
RNIEEREMTEMHEIE HIREH
—E—HENAZ+MHEEZZE-F
FMNAZ+MNENESHRENSA T DN
STEBH
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES - continued
Share options granted on 24 April 2020 (“Share

198

Option 2"”) - continued

Among the 3,900,000 options granted to the employees of

the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC, these options are

exercisable in the following manner:

1. up to 30% of the options granted to each grantee
shall be exercisable on or after 24 April 2020 to 23

April 2021;

2. up to further 30% of the options granted to each

grantee shall be exercisable on or after 24 April 2021

to 23 April 2022; and

3. all the remaining 40% of the options granted to each

grantee shall be exercisable on or after 24 April 2022
to 23 April 2023, and in each case, not later than 24

April 2030.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, share-based payment

expense of approximately HK$1,727,000 were charged to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss (2020: HK$Nil).

WANIJIA GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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R-E_EFMNAZ+HNAKRHDN
RERGHE (THERRIE2)) — &
RAEARFEKRBARZEEREZ
3,900,00017 BE RGP > S S HE AR #E AT %
MFARITE:

1.

HEARBABEZRZ30%ER
EER_Z-_ZFEMNAZ+MAH
BB E_ZE_—F@OB_-_+=
BiT®E;

MEARBAE—FTHRUEZERZSH
M30%ERERNK _E-_—F WM
BZ+HEZZBEZZE -
mE-+=H{1F; &

MEARBAREZABERT40%
BREBWNR _ZE__£M0A
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BZ+=R11F KR&EBERT
FENR_Z=TFWMA-+MmAB-
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34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 34. EXR A 3RS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had entered into transactions with
related parties/connected person which, in the opinion of
directors, were carried out at normal commercial terms and
in the ordinary course of the Group's business, as shown

below:

(a) Key management personnel remuneration:

MR EMBRERAMEHREESN
AEME RS AEALETTY
R EFZRR AEXZHEEESR

EFERUENAEBRREEFBRERE
7 5mETF :

a) FTEEHASHM :

2021 2020

ZEZ—F | ZZTIZTHF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FAT TET

Short term employees benefits ZHI R B EF 831 898
Provident fund contributions NETHER 18 20
Share-based payment UM AERZ TR 28 -
877 918

BEREEZERERAR
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34. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

-

34. EXRMARE B

- continued
(b) Transaction with related parties/connected b) HRKAE REALZRS
person
2021 2020
—E=—F —TTEHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Expense relating to short-term lease  £2Wang Jia JunzJ I f2HAFA &
with Wang Jia Jun BRZEAX 180 135
Disposal of motor vehicle to the HESEFEERZME
brother of Yung Ka Lai - 10
Finance cost of lease liabilities to the HEHZEBZHRK
mother of Yung Ka Lai and the Wang Jia JunZ & B ER 2
mother-in-law of Wang Jia Jun HEaREZMBEER 1 14

The Group had entered into a number of transactions
with connected parties which, upon the listing of
shares on the Stock Exchange, became connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules. These
transactions are continuing transactions exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules. The details information has
been disclosed on Report of the Directors “Continuing

Connected Transactions”.
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35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 35. MEEHEENAEBHIR
FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

Amounts due
Amount due to directors

to a connected and a Other Lease
person shareholder borrowing liabilities Total
FEf—%
MEAL ERESERK
ZHE —ARRWME Hitfg & HEARE aF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TET TER FTET FTET
As at 1 April 2019 RZE—NEMA—H 1,000 2,000 60,000 17,664 80,664
Change from financing cash flows: MERERELT
Repayment of other borrowing BEEMEER - - (60,000) - (60,000)
Decrease in amount due to directors ERNESR—ARERERD
and a shareholder - (800) - - (800)
Increase in amount due to a Ef—amREALZ
connected Person FIEEM 4,200 - - - 4,200
Repayment of lease liabilities BERESE - - - (2,302) (2,302)
Interest paid BAFE - - (10,113) - (10,113)
Total changes from financing cash flows HEREHEHFHUE 4,200 (800) (70,113) (2,302) (69,015)
Other changes: HitE) :
New lease entered METHE - - - 8,459 8,459
Interest expenses FERX = = 10,113 976 11,089
Exchange realignment ERAE - - - (1,266) (1,266)
Total other changes HitZEhia%E - - 10,113 8,169 18,282
As at 31 March 2020 and RZE-ZHE=A=+—-HAk
1 April 2020 —E-_TEMA—AH 5,200 1,200 - 23,531 29,931
Change from financing cash flows: MERERELE .
Increase in amount due to directors and FEfTEE Kk—2 RRFIEREM
a shareholder - 7,050 - - 7,050
Increase in amount due to a R —amEALZ
connected Person I 1,000 - - - 1,000
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEEE - - - (3,723) (3,723)
Total changes from financing cash flows BEREHELHEE 1,000 7,050 - (3,723) 4,327
Other changes: Hith &)
New lease entered METHE - - = 296 296
Lease termination AEXIE - - - (969) (969)
Interest expenses FISEX - - - 1,338 1,338
Exchange realignment ERAE - - - 1,651 1,651
Total other changes Htt&s) @ - - = 2,316 2,316
As at 31 March 2021 WZE-—-%=B=+—-H 6,200 8,250 - 22,124 36,574
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36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments at each of the end of the reporting

36.

date contracted but not provided for in the consolidated

financial statements were as follows:

B KR
REREHF BTHBLERES
BRREHBEZEARRARDOT :

)

2021 2020
R | ZTZZTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Commitments for the construction contract FAEY)¥EEE S BESLNKIE
for leasehold improvement 1,245 4,330

37.

37. CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN

SUBSIDIARIES

Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary’s equity
interest

On 21 February 2019 (after trading hours of the Stock
Exchange), the Hui Hao (HK) Group Limited (the “HK
Company”), the Fuzhou Ren An Medical Technology
Limited* (F@MN{-Z B ERIFLHRAF) (the “"PRC Minority
Shareholder”) and the Fujian Province Fuzhou City Huihao
Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd.* (fBEEEBMNHEFHEERR
‘AF]) (the “Target Company”) entered into the capital
reduction agreement in relation to the reduction of the
registered capital of the Target Company by RMB20,000,000
(equivalent of HK$23,341,000, representing approximately
21.86% of existing registered capital of the Target Company,
of which RMB715,000 (equivalent of HK$834,000)
will be reduced from the registered capital owned by
the HK Company and RMB19,285,000 (equivalent of
HK$22,507,000) will be reduced from the registered capital
owned by the PRC Minority Shareholder. All conditions of
the reduction of the registered capital was fulfilled and

completion took place on 23 April 2019.

& English translations of official Chinese names are for identification
purpose only.
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CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARIES - continued

Deemed acquisition of a subsidiary’s equity
interest — continued

As a result of capital reduction, the registered capital of
the Target Company was reduced from RMB91,500,000
(equivalent of HK$106,786,000) to RMB71,500,000
(equivalent of HK$83,445,000), which owned as to 99% by
the HK Company and 1% by the PRC Minority Shareholder
respectively and the Group recognised a decrease in non—
controlling interests of approximately HK$48,324,000 and an

increase in other reserve of approximately HK$25,817,000.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Directors are not aware of any significant events
requiring disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31
March 2021 and up to the date of this report.

AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 June
2021.

37.

38.

39.

RMEARZEREREDED
—#
RERE— B AR Z R — &

HRAE BEARZAMERBAAR
#91,500,0007T (#EE 106,786,000
A) RO EARM71,500,0007T (48
E1183,445,000%7w)  Ho R HEE
REAIRPEDHAKRREEFTIO DK%
aEAEECHRIEERER AL
#948,324,0008 T R Hth ML
25,817,000 7T °
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the

published audited financial statements, is set out below:

BB ETIREERMBRR]ZEEENE
ZLEMBEEZXEREELRBRZBE
W

=+
RESULTS E 3
For the year ended 31 March
BEZA=1+—HLEFE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—Z”- ZZTFE  ZZ—hE  ZE)\E CZ—tF
HKS'000 ~ i 000 HK$7000 HK$'000 HK$/000
TERT TET TET TAR TET
Results ES
Revenue Iy 25 114,086 96,977 96,480 353,014 985,909
Cost of sales HER A (72,750) (71,625) (80,448) (313,825) (859,640)
Gross profit EY 41,336 25,352 16,032 39,189 126,269
Other revenue Hifhes 597 158 607 600 3,582
Other gain and loss, net Hithl e R g548 0 7288 (102) 219 (646) 196 990
(Provision)/reversal of impairment loss B REMBWTIEREZEZ
in respect of trade and other WIEEE () /BEFE
receivables and deposits, net (2,409) (3,617) 4,788 - -
Impairment loss on goodwill MERERE . - - (35,349) (336) -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary & — R B AR Z B8 - - = = (326)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (24,987) (17,139) (3,669) (13,094) (95,226)
Administrative expenses THEZ (16,524) (14,443) (25,041) (25,952) (45,223)
(Loss)/profit from operations EEER (8518) i (2,089) (9,470) (43,388) 603 (9,934)
Finance costs HHER (1,338) (11,089) (12,839) (14,696) (14,441)
Loss before taxation PRI AIRSE (3.427) (20,559) (56,227) (14,093) (24,375)
Taxation R1a (1,050) (308) (1,946) (4,856) (1,350)
Loss from discontinued operation BRIEEEERER - - (7,570) (36,478) =
Loss for the year TEEBE (4,477) (20,867) (65,743) (55,427) (25,725)
(Loss)/profit for the year HMTALEIERERE
attributable to: (#538) /.
Owners of the Company KRB EFA (4,536) (20,744) (66,592) (55,586) (25,792)
Non-controlling interests FFERER 59 (123) 849 159 67
(4,477) (20,867) (65,743) (55,427) (25,725)
For the_year ended 31 March
H#E=B=1+—HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
- “22E 2—AHFE  ZE-\fE 2+
HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000
FER TET TERT TAET AT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERER
Total assets mEE 223,587 206,700 226,589 456,808 560,339
Total liabilities mafR (52,512) (48,365) (91,494) (242,392) (322,555)
Total equity EHAE 171,075 158,335 135,095 214,416 237,784
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